

STATE OF MONTANA LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE HANDBOOK

October, 2016

Version 2.0

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Table of Contents	
SECTION I: INTRODUCTION	1
History & Background	1
Understanding EPCRA	2
Occupational Health & Safety Standards (29 CFR 1910.120)	4
SECTION II: LOCAL PLANNING EMERGENCY COMMITTEE	5
Purpose	5
LEPC Duties & Responsibilities	6
LEPC Structure	7
Key Positions	7
By-Laws	
Meetings	
Administration	
Public Inquiries and Awareness	
Funding LEPC Activities	
Maintaining an Effective LEPC:	
Tribal Emergency Response Commission	
SECTION III: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR FACILITIES WITH HAZARD	OUS
MATERIALS	
Hazardous Materials Subject to Regulation	15
Hazard Chemical Inventory Reporting	
SECTION IV: EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLANNING	19
Emergency Response Plan Requirements	
Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Guide	
Emergency Response Plan Training & Education	
Emergency Response Plan Exercise & Evaluation	21
SECTION V: HAZARDOUS MATERIALS RESPONSE OPTIONS	23
Local Government Response	23
Reimbursement to Local Governments	24

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

APPENDICES	25
Sample LEPC By-Laws	27
Example of LEPC Membership & Stakeholder Involvement	37
Sample Invitation Letter to Request Participation on LEPC	39
LEPC Self-Evaluation Tool	41
Holding an Effective LEPC Meeting	45
Sample LEPC Meeting Agenda	49
Robert's Rules of Order	51
Example EPCRA Notice of Publication	57
Montana Code Annotated (MCA) Title 10, Chapter 3, Part 12: Response to Hazardous	
Materials Incidents	59
Sample LEPC Membership Roster	67
EPA TIER II Reporting Form & Instruction	69
Cost Recovery Packet	83
Sample Letter to Appoint LEPC Chairperson	91
List of Acronyms	93

SECTION I: INTRODUCTION

History & Background

The Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) is a product of federal legislation that was passed after the Bhopal disaster in India, where thousands of people died because of an accident involving an accidental release of a hazardous chemical. To prevent similar occurrences in our own communities, Congress passed the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), also known as the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA Title III), in 1986. EPCRA has four major provisions: Emergency Planning (Sections 301-303); Emergency Release Notification (Section 304); Hazardous Chemical Storage Reporting Requirements (Sections 311-312); and Toxic Chemical Release Inventory (Section 313). The Community Right-to-Know provisions in EPCRA help increase public knowledge and provide them access to information on chemicals at individual facilities, their uses, and releases into the environment.

More recent events such as the explosion in West, Texas in 2013 and the Elk River chemical spill in January 2014 have once again placed a spot light on hazardous materials incidents and community preparedness. Both of these incidents have led to increased scrutiny of how facilities, local, state, and federal agencies work together to protect citizens. As a result of the West Texas explosion, the president signed Executive Order 13650 requiring federal agencies to review how information gathered under EPCRA, the Chemical Facility Anti-Terrorism Standard (CFATS), the Risk Management Program (RMP), and other federal programs can be shared among federal, state and local agencies (including first responders) in a more useful manner. It also charged these agencies with reviewing first responder capabilities, identifying areas of collaboration between agencies, and improved public access to chemical facility risks.

The ultimate success rests with the LEPCs. They are the link among citizens, industry, and the government. Because LEPC's are most familiar with the hazards in their communities, and because local citizens are the first responders for emergencies, LEPC's are in the best position to assist local governments in developing plans to respond to emergencies in their jurisdictions. This handbook, while not a policy manual, is a guide for LEPC's in their relationship to state and federal agencies. The complete EPCRA should be used by the LEPC when making decisions regarding hazardous materials. The Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) and any other appropriate document can be used to keep informed of any changes that may be made in the future.

Understanding EPCRA

EPCRA is made up of Sections 301-330 of Public Law 99-499 with Sections 302-313 and Section 324, being most common for LEPCs. The following is a brief description of these important sections:

SECTION 302 (40 CFR 302)

EPCRA Section 302 requires the owner or operator of a facility that has present any extremely hazardous substances (EHSs) in amounts that exceed the chemical-specific threshold planning quantity (TPQ) to notify the State Emergency Response Commission (SERC) that the facility is subject to the planning provisions of the Act. If a facility newly acquires an EHS in excess of the TPQ, or if there is a revision to the list of EHSs and the facility has present a substance on the revised list in excess of the TPQ, the owner or operator of the facility is required to notify the SERC, Tribal Emergency Response Commission (TERC), and the LEPC within 60 days after such acquisition or revision. The U.S. District Court for the district in which the facility is located has authority to enforce the order and assess penalties of up to \$27,500 per violation per day.

SECTION 303

(40 CFR Part 355)

EPCRA Section 303(d) requires owners or operators subject to Section 302 to provide the TERC/LEPC with the name of a person who will act as the facility emergency coordinator. Additionally, Section 303(d)(3) requires the owner or operator to promptly supply information to the TERC/LEPC upon request. The scope of the information request encompasses anything necessary for developing and implementing the emergency plan. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is authorized to issue orders compelling compliance with Section 303(d). The U.S. District Court for the district in which the facility is located has authority to enforce the order and assess penalties of up to \$27,500 per violation per day.

SECTION 304

(40 CFR Part 355)

EPCRA Section 304(a) requires the owner or operator to notify immediately the appropriate governmental entities for any release that requires CERCLA notification and for releases of EPCRA Section 302 EHSs. The notification must be given to the SERCs for all states likely to be affected by the release and to the community emergency coordinators for the TERCs/LEPCs for all areas likely to be affected by the release. If the release occurs during transportation, or storage incident to such transportation, the notice requirement shall be satisfied by dialing 911 or, in the absence of a 911 emergency telephone number, calling the operator and supplying the appropriate information. EPCRA Section 304(c) requires any owner or operator who has had a release that is

reportable to provide, as soon as practicable, a follow-up written notice (or notices) to the SERC, TERC, and LEPC updating the information required.

SECTION 311 AND 312 (40 CFR Part 370)

EPCRA Section 311 requires that the owner or operator of a facility who is required to prepare or have available a Safety Data Sheet (SDS) for a hazardous chemical under the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) of 1970 shall submit to the SERC, TERC, LEPC, and the fire department with jurisdiction over the facility a SDS for each such chemical (or a list of such chemicals as described in that section) present at the facility in quantities equal to or greater than 10,000 pounds or the chemical-specific minimum threshold level established by the Administrator (whichever is lower). The submission(s) must be made within three (3) months after the owner or operator of a facility first becomes subject to OSHA's requirements for hazardous chemicals. If the hazardous chemical is a listed EHS under Section 302, the threshold for reporting is 500 pounds or the chemical-specific threshold planning quantity, whichever is lower. A revised SDS shall be provided within 3 months following discovery by an owner or operator of significant new information concerning an aspect of a hazardous chemical for which a SDS was previously submitted. In addition, if a facility changes its inventory and a chemical becomes subject to these reporting requirements, the facility must provide the SDS to the SERC, TERC, LEPC, and fire department within 3 months.

EPCRA Section 312 provides that the owner or operator of a facility required to prepare or have available a SDS for a hazardous chemical under OSHA, shall submit annually (on March 1) to the SERC, TERC, LEPC, and the fire department with jurisdiction over the facility, a completed emergency and hazardous chemical inventory form which may either be aggregate information by hazard category (Tier I) or specific information by chemical (Tier II). The form must include information on all hazardous chemicals present at the facility during the previous calendar year in amounts that meet or exceed thresholds.

SECTION 313

(40 CFR Part 372)

EPCRA Section 313 deals with the routine release of toxic or hazardous substances into the environment. This is known as Toxic Release Inventory (TRI) and is part of a manufacturing or operating process. The quantity and type of release are known and the reporting threshold is based on the total quantity released during the year. Section 313 differs from Section 304; which deals only with accidental releases. Montana has few facilities subject to Section 313 reporting and the SERC, TERC, and LEPC will not receive the TRI report directly. Any LEPC that has concerns about TRI or want more information about it should contact the Montana Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).

SECTION 322

(40 CFR Part 350)

EPCRA Section 322 states that, with regard to a hazardous chemical, an extremely hazardous substance, or toxic chemical, any person required under Sections 303, 311, or 312, of EPCRA to submit information to any other person may withhold from such submittal the specific chemical identity (including the chemical name and other specific identification) if the requirements of Section 322(a)(2) are met. These requirements include trade secret claims.

Section 323

(40 CFR Part 370)

EPCRA Section 323 requires the owner/operator to submit chemical specific information to medical personnel in the event of a medical emergency and for preventative measures by local health professionals.

SECTION 324

(40 CFR Part 370)

EPCRA Section 324 is the right to know potion of the EPCRA. It requires that Emergency Operations Plans (EOP), SDS, and Tier II report information be made available to the general public. Each LEPC is required to annually publish a notice, through print or electronic media, that the EOP, SDS, and Tier II forms have been submitted and it must state the location where such documents may be reviewed during normal business hours. Facilities that have submitted Tier II reports may request the LEPC to keep the location of the hazardous materials within the facility confidential. Do not confuse this provision with the trade secret exception in Section 322.

Occupational Health & Safety Standards (29 CFR 1910.120)

This handbook/guideline recommends LEPCs become familiar with 29 CFR 1910.120, which is the OSHA standards regarding hazardous materials. These standards set the requirements for the hazardous waste operations and emergency response requirements for safety and health programs, site characteristics and analysis, site control, training, medical surveillance, engineering controls, work practices, personal protective equipment, monitoring, handling drums and containers, decontamination procedures, emergency response at uncontrolled hazardous waste sites, illumination, sanitation at temporary workplaces, new technology programs, operations conducted under the resource conservation and recovery act (RCRA), and emergency response to hazardous substance release.

SECTION II: LOCAL PLANNING EMERGENCY COMMITTEE

Purpose

LEPCs work to understand the hazards in the community, develop emergency plans in case of an accidental release or natural disaster, and look for ways to prevent accidents. The role of LEPCs is to form a partnership between local governments and industries to enhance allhazards preparedness. The local government is responsible for all-hazards planning and response within their jurisdiction. This includes:

- Ensuring the local hazard analysis adequately addresses all-hazards incidents
- Incorporating planning for all-hazards incidents into the local emergency operations plan and annexes
- Assessing capabilities and developing all-hazards response capability using local resources, mutual aid and contractors
- Training responders
- Exercising the plan

Industry must be a part of this planning process to ensure facility plans are compatible with local emergency plans. Every regulated facility is responsible for:

- Identifying a facility emergency coordinator
- Reporting hazmat inventories annually to the SERC, LEPC, and local fire department
- Providing SDS or a list of hazardous chemicals
- Allowing local fire departments to conduct on-site inspection of hazmat facilities
- Providing annual report of toxic chemicals released, to EPA and the State

LEPCs are crucial to community right-to-know programs and all-hazards planning. Members of the LEPC represent various organizations, agencies, departments, facilities, and/or other groups within the district. The membership comes from the local area and should be familiar with factors that affect public safety, the environment, and the economy of the community. In addition to its formal duties, the LEPC serves as a focal point in the community for information and discussions about hazardous substances and natural disaster emergency planning and health and environmental risks. Citizens will expect the LEPC to reply to questions about hazards and risk management actions.

LEPC Duties & Responsibilities

As mentioned in Part I, the EPCRA establishes the LEPC as a forum at the local level for discussions and a focus for action in matters pertaining to all-hazards planning. LEPCs also help to provide local governments and the public with information about all-hazards in their communities.

Primary LEPC Responsibilities

The major legal responsibilities of LEPCs in Montana are listed below. The citations are from the EPCRA, Public Law 99-499. Each LEPC:

- 1) Shall review local emergency plans once a year or more frequently as circumstances change in the community or as any facility may require (Section 303(a)).
- 2) Shall make each Safety Data Sheet, chemical list described in Section 311(a)(2) or Tier II report, inventory form, toxic chemical release form, and follow-up emergency notice maintained by the LEPC, consistent with Section 322, available to the general public during normal working hours at a location designated by the LEPC (Section 324(a)).
- 3) Shall establish procedures for receiving and processing requests from the public for information under Section 324, including Tier II information under Section 312. Such procedures shall include the designation of an official to serve as coordinator for information (Section 301(c)).
- 4) Shall receive from each subject facility the name of a facility representative who will participate in the emergency planning process as a facility emergency coordinator (Section 303(c)).
- 5) Shall be informed by the community emergency coordinator of hazardous chemical releases reported by owners or operators of covered facilities (Section 304(b)(1)(a)).
- 6) Shall be given written follow-up information as soon as practical after a release that requires the owner/operator to submit a notice (Section 304(c)).
- 7) Shall receive from the owner or operator of any facility a Safety Data Sheet for each chemical or a list of such chemicals as described in paragraph (2) (Section 311(a)).
- 8) Shall, upon request by any person, make available Safety Data Sheet(s) to the person in accordance with Section 324 (Section 311(a)).
- 9) Shall receive from the owner or operator of each facility an emergency and hazardous chemical inventory form (Section 312(a)).
- 10) Shall respond to a request for Tier II information under this paragraph no later than 45 days after the date of receipt of the request (Section 312(e)).
- 11) May commence a civil action against an owner or operator of a facility for failure to provide information under section 303(d) or for failure to submit Tier II information under section 312(e)(1) (Section 326(a)(2)(B)).

LEPC Structure

As prescribed under Section 301 of EPCRA, as a minimum the LEPC shall include representatives from the following organizations/agencies as applicable:

- Elected state or local officials
- Law Enforcement
- Emergency Management
- Fire Departments
- Emergency Medical Services
- Health
- Local Environmental Groups
- Hospitals
- Transportation
- Broadcast and/or print media
- Owners and operators of covered facilities

More than one of the above groups or organizations may be represented by a single person. Likewise, more than one member may represent a group. Ideally, members should be interested in emergency programs and community right-to-know activities. Because the LEPC's members represent the community, they should be familiar with factors that affect public safety, the environment, and the economy of the community. That expertise will be essential as the LEPC develops a plan tailored to the needs of the community. If an LEPC is unable to get a representative or participation from each of these organizations, they can provide them with a copy of the minutes, the meeting announcements and agendas, and stay in contact with the appropriate representative of those agencies or organizations. Appendix B on page 37 contains examples of potential community members that a LEPC can solicit for membership.

Key Positions

- 1) <u>Chairperson</u> The local authority must appoint a Chairperson and may appoint a Vice-Chairperson and other officers. A term of office should be set, but may vary in length according to the needs of each LEPC. The Chairperson can be any LEPC member. Some LEPC have chosen political leaders; others have selected chairpersons from Emergency Management, environmental groups, industry or civic organizations. Important factors to consider are the availability, management skills, commitment to the program, and respect from other LEPC members and the community (See Appendix M on page 89 for a sample appointment letter).
- 2) <u>Information Coordinator EPCRA requires the LEPC to designate an Information Coordinator.</u> The Information Coordinator's job is to process requests from the Public for information under Section 324, including Tier II information under Section 312. The Information Coordinator can also assist other committee members and may have another position in the LEPC as well.

3) Others - Positions not required by law, but which have proved useful are: Vice-Chairperson, Secretary/Treasurer, and Chairpersons of standing committees

Maintaining a listing of LEPC memberships is the responsibility of the SERC and the SERC has tasked this administrative responsibility to MT DES. The SERC provides this information to the public, industry, federal agencies, and other state agencies and states. A current roster of LEPC memberships must be submitted to MT DES annually for review/approval by the SERC. It is important for LEPCs to keep current their membership roster and notify MT DES of any membership changes. Montana DES maintains a synopsis on each LEPC. This information is obtained through mechanisms approved by the SERC. LEPC members are either appointed by county commissioners or according to its by-laws which are reviewed by the SERC annually.

LEPC Functions

The LEPC functions include the following:

- Gathering and reviewing existing community and facility emergency plans annually
- Reviewing and updating of emergency operation plans
- Coordinating local response capabilities
- Checking and/or inventory of emergency response equipment in the community
- Identifying financial resources
- Coordinating with other LEPC and Emergency Management
- Conducting a hazard analysis
- Managing and providing information for citizens
- Providing information to facilities
- Promoting public awareness of EPCRA, community chemical hazards, and emergency response expected from the public
- Researching and applying for grant opportunities

To more efficiently carry out its functions, some LEPCs may designate:

- 1) <u>A Planning Subcommittee</u>, whose responsibilities may include:
 - a. Assisting in the reviewing, developing and updating of the Emergency Operations Plan and/or other emergency plans.
 - b. Reviewing the site-specific Hazardous Materials Response Plans submitted for each facility with EHS.
- 2) <u>A Public Information Subcommittee</u>, whose responsibilities may include:
 - a. Writing and publishing public notices.
 - b. Establishing an information retrieval system.
 - c. Performing citizen/neighborhood outreach to inform them of plans and other valuable information.

- 3) <u>A Training and Exercising Subcommittee</u>, whose responsibilities may include:
 - a. Conducting a training needs assessment.
 - b. Requesting available training and other sources to provide needed training.
 - c. Coordinating training programs.
 - d. Establishing an exercise schedule.
- 4) <u>An Executive Subcommittee</u>, whose responsibilities may include:
 - a. Designate chairpersons for each subcommittee.
 - b. Develop long-term goals for the LEPC.
 - c. Tend to needs of the LEPC members.
 - d. Review LEPC membership terms and solicit volunteers to fill vacancies.
 - e. Be familiar with federal, state and local laws that impact the LEPC.
 - f. Develop a work plan with timetables for the other subcommittees.
- 5) <u>A Resource Development Subcommittee</u>, whose responsibilities may include:
 - a. Researching the resources in the community for emergency response.
 - b. Identifying alternative resources that the community may use in time of emergency or disaster.
 - c. Updating the local resource inventory.
 - d. Identifying other volunteer or in-kind assistance contributions (private sources such as business, industry, non-profit agencies etc.).
- 6) <u>An Emergency Response Subcommittee</u>, whose responsibilities may include:
 - a. Developing emergency response procedures for local government personnel that may be utilized in emergency response.
 - b. Establishing local Incident Command System procedures to strengthen and coordinate local government emergency response.
- 7) <u>A Finance Subcommittee</u>, whose responsibilities may include:
 - a. Management of the LEPC budget.
 - b. Examining and recommending the use of funds.
- 8) <u>Business/Industry Outreach subcommittee</u>, whose responsibilities may include:
 - a. Developing initiatives that will encourage active participation by the commercial businesses and industrial facilities in your community.
 - b. Reports on subcommittee activities can be made at the regularly scheduled LEPC meetings.

By-Laws

Rules or by-laws for the LEPC shall be established as required in EPCRA Section 301. The by-laws may include the following provisions:

- Public notification of committee activities
- Public meetings to discuss the emergency plan
- Response to and provision of public comments
- Distribution of emergency plan
- Election of officers

Meetings

LEPC meetings are subject to the State Open Meetings Act and should follow an organized format such as Robert's Rules, or some other guidelines. A well-planned agenda is an important tool for conducting effective meetings. The agenda should identify specific issues to be discussed as well as guest speakers. If needed, each agenda item may be assigned a time limit. The key is to follow the agenda and adhere to the time limits as they are set.

The frequency of LEPC meetings is not mandated but recommended at least quarterly. However, in order to keep the LEPC functioning effectively, regularly scheduled meetings, which address diverse issues and work toward progress on key concerns, are essential. Circumstances may change frequently, along with key phone numbers and contacts. Regular meetings also offer the opportunity for the LEPC to broaden its role in the community.

Each committee member should be sent, if possible, a copy of the agenda one to two weeks before the meeting, along with any pertinent information to allow the participants to prepare for the meeting. Posting of meeting dates, times and locations, oral public comments, and recording of meeting minutes may all be subject to State Rules. LEPC are encouraged to seek topics, speakers, invitations from facilities and response organizations and other opportunities to expand knowledge from a wide variety of sources. Each meeting should have a record keeper that will produce minutes, and a record of all actions. A copy of these minutes should be provided to all the members and will be submitted to MT DES.

Although LEPC should attempt to have quarterly scheduled meetings, it may be beneficial to move meetings to different locations within the county or tribe. This will allow participants that may not be able to attend at one place and time the opportunity to attend at another.

Administration

Most LEPCs are challenged with having to administer a program with little or no budget, and no office to work from. Despite this, they are required by law to respond to public inquiries about hazardous materials in their communities within 45 days. Keeping efficient records and using workspace provided by a LEPC member organization can still accomplish this. Some LEPC co-locate with the emergency management program or a local fire or law enforcement department. This can be a benefit to each organization involved.

Maintenance of Records

At a minimum, LEPC must maintain the following records:

- ☑ Copy of Local Emergency Operations Plans and their annexes.
- \blacksquare Safety Data Sheets or information on where to obtain them.
- ☑ Initial and follow-up hazardous chemical spill reports.
- \blacksquare Records of LEPC and committee meetings (minutes).
- \square LEPC membership list.
- ☑ Tier II reports (either paper or electronic) for reporting facilities.

Public Inquiries and Awareness

EPCRA requires LEPC to establish procedures for receiving and processing requests from the public for information under Section 312. EPCRA is based on the principal that the more known about hazardous chemicals in the community, the better prepared the community will be to manage these potential hazards and to improve public safety and health.

Funding LEPC Activities

The cost of implementing EPCRA at the LEPCs throughout Montana will vary. Communities have found a wide range of solutions to funding LEPCs. Some examples are:

Volunteers and donated services

Much of the work of the LEPC can be accomplished with little or no funding. Committee members often donate time and other resources. Local businesses and agencies have also contributed their services. Some LEPC have found that volunteers can be a great source of manpower.

<u>Grants</u>

There are limited state and federal funds available to the LEPC through grant programs. Authorized by the 1990 Hazardous Materials Transportation Uniform Safety Act (HMTUSA), the Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness (HMEP) Grant Program provides funding nationally for hazardous materials emergency response planning and training at the local level. The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) oversees the HMEP Grant Program and is administered by MT DES in Montana. All questions relative to assistance for funding LEPC planning, training and/or exercise events fall under the HMEP Grant Program and will be directed to MT DES.

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) also provides funds for local emergency management through its Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG). EMPG is offered to give "assistance to counties in developing disaster and assistance plans, programs, capabilities, and organizations. The purpose of the program is to ensure that a comprehensive emergency management system exists for disasters or emergencies resulting from natural disasters, accidental, or man-caused events.

The Department of Homeland Security (DHS) provides grant opportunities through the Homeland Security Grant Program which funds a range of preparedness activities, including planning, organization, equipment purchase, training, exercises, and management and administration. Refer to the Montana Grants & Loans website (<u>www.fundingmt.org</u>) or contact a MT DES Grant Coordinator at 406-324-4777 for more information on grant opportunities for LEPCs.

Supplemental Environmental Projects

Once an action has been commenced by EPA against a facility for not submitting a Tier Two Chemical Inventory Report (Section 312) or emergency release notification (CERCLA Section 103/EPCRA Section 312), there is an alternative to simply imposing fines on the noncomplying facility. Current federal enforcement policy authorizes consideration for mitigating the fines imposed if the offending facility agrees to perform a supplemental environmental project (SEP). Enforcement actions provide an opportunity for the facility to become actively involved in the local planning and response process and to assist the LEPCs in their activities. These agreements are an appropriate way to enforce EPCRA, since the SEPs can be arranged to aid in its implementation. Through the use of SEPs, facilities have:

- Provided emergency or computer equipment to the LEPC
- Provided training to local emergency or planning personnel
- Become active members in the LEPC
- Participated in training and exercises
- Provided funding for public outreach

Industry Donations

Some funding programs in the country for LEPCs are through industries that are active members of the LEPC. Industry may provide not only funding for special projects, but equipment, and expertise.

Maintaining an Effective LEPC:

Research shows most effective LEPCs:

- Have clearly defined goals.
- Have members that know what their "job" is in the LEPC.
- Have members with responsibilities and interests from broad-based community representation (not dominated by one segment).
- Have members that stay committed and interested because they:
 - Feel useful and believe they are helping the community.
 - Have been given tasks according to their interests and expertise.
 - Have been given challenging tasks.
 - Are recognized for their contributions.
 - Have a chance to develop their own skills.
- Have members that understand their purpose and value and share this with their superiors to gain support.
- Have working relationships with the state level agencies responsible for the program, and with their peers in other counties.
- Have meetings scheduled at regular, convenient times (at least quarterly).
- Have meetings that adhere to the agenda and are concerned with common interests.
- Have a strong leadership and dedicated members.

Tribal Emergency Response Commission

Under sections 301-303 of EPCRA, the Governor of each State appoints a State Emergency Response Commission (SERC). Likewise, the Chief Executive Officer of the Tribe must appoint a Tribal Emergency Response Commission (TERC) for each Tribe. The Tribal Emergency Response Commission (TERC) is the commission responsible for carrying out the provisions of EPCRA on federally recognized tribal lands.

The EPA Chemical Emergency Preparedness and Prevention (CEPP) provides the following options for tribes to implement EPCRA. A Tribe may choose to cooperate with another Tribe, a consortium of Tribes, or the state within which its lands are located to develop an EPCRA program that meets specific tribal needs. Some examples of EPCRA Implementation include:

- 1. A Tribe may directly implement the program within tribal jurisdiction by functioning as a TERC.
- 2. Through cooperation with the SERC, a Tribe may choose to implement some, but not all of the law's requirements while the State implements the remainder of the EPCRA program.
- 3. A Tribe authorizes the SERC to perform the functions of the TERC within tribal jurisdiction and the Tribe establishes a TEPC or joins an LEPC that works directly with the SERC.

Depending on the system or option chosen by each Tribe to implement EPCRA, each Tribe may use the guidelines from this handbook at their discretion and benefit.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

SECTION III: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR FACILITIES WITH HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Hazardous Materials Subject to Regulation

There are five groups of chemicals subject to reporting under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) and the Risk Management Plans (RMP's) under the Clean Air Act of 1990 (112R). Some chemicals appear in several of these lists. These lists are:

- Extremely Hazardous Substances (EHS)
- Hazardous Substances
- Hazardous Chemicals
- Toxic Chemicals
- List of Toxics & Flammables

Hazard Chemical Inventory Reporting

There are fixed facilities in almost every county, which use, produce and/or store hazardous chemicals. **The LEPC needs to be aware of all the facilities in their jurisdiction, and especially the ones handling EHS**. These facilities may be privately or government owned and they all may be subject to some provisions of the law. Federal facilities also must comply with the provisions of the EPCRA.

Hazardous Substance Inventory Reports

Emergency Preparedness Phase

- 1) Identification of facilities subject to Special Planning Requirements:
 - a. Any facility that produces, uses or stores any of the more than 475 EHSs in quantities greater than the Threshold Planning Quantity (TPQ) listed in 40 CFR 355 at any time must report to the LEPC, TERC, and SERC through submission of TIER II forms, that they are subject to the EPCRA emergency planning requirements if they have certain extremely hazardous substances (EHS) listed in 40 CFR 355. Transportation vessels are exempt.
 - b. Facilities must report within 60 days after a facility acquires EHSs in a quantity greater than the TPQ.
 - c. Facilities subject to special planning requirements must identify who will participate in the emergency planning process as the facility representative and facility emergency coordinator.
 - d. All facilities must submit information about the types and amounts of chemicals present if requested by the fire chief or the LEPC.
- 2) Annual Chemical Inventory Reporting
 - a. Any facility that produces, uses or stores any EHSs in quantities equal to or greater than the TPQs listed in 40 CFR 355, or 500 pounds, whichever is less or other

hazardous chemicals as defined by OSHA in the Hazard Communication Standard (29 CFR 1910.1200) as presenting a physical or health hazard present in quantities of 10,000 lbs. or more, must report to the LEPC, TERC, and SERC through submission of TIER II forms. Note: No specific list of chemicals is cited, but chemicals are covered if the owner/operator must maintain a Safety Data Sheet on the material under OSHA rules.

- b. All facilities must submit information about the types and amounts of chemicals present if requested by the fire chief or the LEPC.
- c. According to Section 311, covered facilities must submit Tier II forms to the LEPC, local fire departments, and the SERC within 3 months of acquiring new hazardous chemicals and according to Section 312, by March 1 of each year for the preceding calendar year. Changes must be submitted within 60 days by March 1 of each year. Tier II forms are submitted to the SERC through E-Plan, which is administered by DEQ. Local jurisdictions determine their own reporting mechanism requirements.
- d. If requested, covered facilities must submit Safety Data Sheets to the local fire departments, LEPC, and SERC.
- 3) Annual Toxic Chemical Release Reporting
 - a. Facilities (SIC Codes 20-39) which make, process, import or otherwise use a listed toxic chemical in excess of specified quantities and have 10 or more full-time employees must submit written Toxic Chemical Release Inventory Form R (TRI) by July 1 of each year to EPA Headquarters and to the SERC. Toxics are chemicals, which have chronic or long-term adverse effects on human health. Quantities are 25,000 lbs. over a year for usage in the direct processing or manufacturing. The threshold is 10,000 lbs. over a year for substances used in other than direct processing or manufacturing.

Emergency Response Phase

Covered facilities or transporters must make immediate notification to an established emergency 24-hour phone number.

Reportable Spills or Release Reporting by Facilities or Transporters:

- a. Any release of an EHS listed in 40 CFR 355 or a hazardous substance listed in 40 CFR 302 which meets or exceeds the threshold reportable quantity (RQ) must be reported to the LEPC, DES, SERC, and the NRC.
- b. This requirement applies to any facility that releases a listed hazardous substance that exceeds the RQ for that substance and for transportation accidents involving releases of a listed hazardous substance that exceeds the RQ for that substance. These apply to the list of 475 EHSs and CERCLA 302(a) hazardous substances.
- c. Releases must be reported as soon as it is determined that a spill or release has occurred for a substance covered by the law.
- 2) Other reportable incidents:
 - a. All explosions and/or fires associated with oil, gas, and geothermal activities.
 - b. Any injury, death, property damage, evacuation or other significant incident involving any hazardous materials incident.
 - c. Any incident, accident, or theft involving radiological materials.

Risk Management Program (Clean Air Act Section 112 R)

Important provisions in the amendments of the Clean Air Act advance the process of risk management planning. The amendments include specific provisions addressing accidental releases of hazardous chemicals. On June 20, 1996, EPA promulgated rules and guidance for chemical accident prevention. These rules include requirements for sources (facilities) to develop and implement risk management programs that incorporate six elements: an off-site consequence analysis, a five-year accident history of releases of regulated substances, an integrated accident prevention program, an emergency response program, and a RMP. These programs are summarized in a RMP, which was to be submitted to EPA by June 21, 1996.

It is important for LEPCS to be familiar with these federal rules since they will clearly be affected by them. At a minimum, LEPC can expect to get involved in the following areas of the RMP rule:

- Emergency Response Program of the final rule, which requires the owner or operator of a covered facility to, "provide the name and telephone of the local agency which the facility emergency response plan is coordinated." Facilities may have approached LEPC with requests for the mentioned coordination. LEPC should familiarize themselves with those emergency plans.
- LEPC should make a point of reviewing at least the executive summary of all the risk management plans submitted by facilities within their planning areas. Not only will you find a short summary of the entire facility plan, but you will read about future changes planned to improve safety.
- LEPC should review the hazard assessments provided by the facilities. The vulnerable zones may add significantly to their planning efforts. Because of security concerns these assessments are not included on the Internet and should be discussed directly with the facility.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

SECTION IV: EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLANNING

Emergency Response Plan Requirements

Section 321 of EPCRA states that nothing in EPCRA will preempt any State or local law. Therefore, existing State Law governs local emergency management planning as long as it meets the requirements of EPCRA. This handbook/guideline suggests LEPCs, in coordination with emergency management, develop comprehensive emergency plans to meet the response and recovery needs during emergencies involving natural hazards, national security, and technological and man-made hazards (All Hazard Planning). The LEPC planning envisioned by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) was intended to complement the existing planning that state law already required instead of creating a separate process. In most situations, LEPCs within Montana did not develop a separate plan, but carried out the emergency planning requirements related to hazardous materials by adding a hazardous materials annex.

EPCRA requires each LEPC to complete an emergency plan and review it at least annually or more frequently.

EPCRA requires that each comprehensive emergency response plan have the following provisions:

- Identification of facilities and transportation routes of extremely hazardous substances.
- Description of emergency response methods and procedures to be followed by facility owners and operators and local emergency and medical personnel.
- Designation of a community emergency coordinator and facility coordinator(s) to implement the plan.
- Procedures providing reliable, effective, and timely notification by the facility emergency coordinators and the community emergency coordinator to persons designated in the emergency plan, and to the public.
- Description of methods for determining the occurrence of a release and the probable affected area and population;
- Description of community and industry emergency equipment and facilities, and the identity of persons responsible for them;
- Evacuation plans, including provisions for a precautionary evacuation and alternative traffic routes.
- Description of a training program for emergency response personnel (including schedules);
- Methods and schedules for exercising the emergency plan.

Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Guide

Under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986, the National Response Team (NRT) is responsible for publishing guidance documents for the preparation and implementation of hazardous substance emergency plans. The National Response Team (NRT) – composed of 16 Federal agencies having major responsibilities in environmental, transportation, emergency management, worker safety, and public health areas -- issued the Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Guide (NRT-1) to provide planning guidance for state and local governments in the development of local emergency response plans. A copy of the Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Guide can be downloaded from the EPA website.

Emergency Response Plan Training & Education

EPCRA requires that each comprehensive emergency response plan have a description of training programs in accordance to hazardous materials emergency response, including schedules for training of local emergency response and medical personnel. This guide recommends making these training programs available for all emergency response, management, and facility personnel. Additionally, it is recommended the LEPCs train its own members in their respective areas of responsibility and work together with the Local Office of Emergency Management (OEM) or DES in training such groups as the EOC staff, officials, and others regarding plans, exercises, and other activities.

The training of individuals that must respond to a HAZMAT incident is a critical concern for the health and welfare of the responder and the community. All emergency responders must be properly trained and equipped if they are to successfully handle incidents. To effectively accomplish the EPCRA requirement for the provision of a training program in the jurisdictions comprehensive emergency response plan, the LEPC can coordinate with, support, and assist the various agencies, departments, organizations, and groups with their internal training programs.

The LEPC should consider the implementation of a training and education program for the jurisdiction, which includes training already scheduled and conducted by the local OEM/DES, the various first response agencies and organizations, as well as other training activities relating to mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery. This handbook and guideline also recommends that LEPCs coordinate with and combine training efforts with the various district associations (Fire, Emergency Medical Services (EMS), Law etc.). Combining training sessions has many benefits, such as:

- Attracting more participants.
- Cost savings.
- Training more people with fewer instructor, and most importantly, the students get to know each other, and the roles and responsibilities of their agencies.

Each LEPC should consider how the jurisdiction can best organize, set-up, and conduct a productive training and education program that benefits its jurisdiction in accordance with State

and Federal training standards. One way an LEPC may approach establishing a training and education program is to appoint a Training Sub-Committee. This group could contain representatives of Fire, Law Enforcement, Facility, EMS, and Emergency Management organizations. The Training Sub-Committee should be familiar with the OSHA Standard 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 1910.120(e), which requires initial, management and supervisor, emergency response, and refresher training.

The Training Subcommittee should:

- Carefully review training already provided.
- Assess current and future needs.
- Identify the training goals of various organizations.
- Develop their programs according to training needs assessment

Emergency Response Plan Exercise & Evaluation

EPCRA requires LEPCs to provide methods, schedules, and evaluations of the resources needed necessary to exercise their emergency plan. To further assist the LEPCs in meeting the EPCRA exercise requirement, it is recommended the LEPCs utilize the methods and guiding principles for exercise programs found in the Homeland Security Exercise & Evaluation Program (HSEEP), April 2013 version.

The LEPCs point of contact may want to contact or meet initially with the Exercise Officer of MT DES to seek guidance and to ensure that exercise directives and procedures are understood. Local Emergency Management may also have a major impact and input into this process. The LEPC should provide MT DES with notice of the exercise if it involves hazardous materials to permit the state to participate as appropriate. There are various documents available to assist the LEPC with exercises. These can be provided by MT DES.

Periodically FEMA certified courses in designing, conducting, and evaluating exercises are taught. Interested individuals can contact their MT DES for course information, dates and applications or visit <u>readyandsafe.mt.gov</u> for a listing of exercise training opportunities in Montana. MT DES can also assist in getting evaluators for exercises conducted in communities. However, the LEPCs should support exercises by getting sufficient evaluators who are qualified by training and/or experience to conduct an evaluation of the objectives they will be assigned to review.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

SECTION V: HAZARDOUS MATERIALS RESPONSE OPTIONS

Local Government Response

Both Federal and state statutes indicate the person responsible for the spill (spiller) is responsible for the cleanup. Local government must be prepared to implement appropriate notification and response actions in order to save lives and property during a hazardous materials (HazMat) incident. In Montana, call Disaster and Emergency Services at (406) 324-4777 to make your notifications and receive advice and assistance.

Local Emergency Response Authority (LERA)

The Montana Response to Hazardous Incidents act requires cities and counties to designate a Local Emergency Response Authority (LERA) for hazardous materials incidents that occur within their jurisdictions. Cities and counties are encouraged to appoint a response authority whose members are trained in hazardous substance incident response. If the jurisdiction does not have a LERA designated, the presiding officer of the board of county commissioners must be the local emergency response authority for the incident. (See Appendix I on page 59 MCA Title 10, Chapter 3, Part 12.) Also, Tribal Nations are encouraged to appoint a response authority whose members are trained in hazardous substance incident response as well.

Firefighters and HazMat Teams

Most jurisdictions assign the responsibility of hazardous substance spills response to the local or district fire department. Proper training and equipment necessary for hazardous substance response is costly in manpower and dollars, so capabilities vary considerably throughout the state. First responders should have the training to recognize immediately whether their team has the proper training and equipment to handle the incident. Some fire departments in Montana have specially trained personnel that have the capability to respond to a hazardous materials incident in their jurisdiction. If assistance is needed in the form of manpower, equipment, or advice; it can be obtained by having local emergency management call MT DES.

Incident Command System (ICS)

Under 29 CFR 1910.120, Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response, OSHA requires the use of the Incident Command System (ICS) by private organizations responding to hazardous substance spills. EPA's 40 CFR 311 refers response actions and related worker safety and health for state and local employees to the OSHA citation. The designated, or local senior emergency response official on-scene is usually the Incident Commander (IC). State and Federal On Scene Coordinators (OSC) are expected to work under the Incident Command System (ICS) at all incidents, and are considered to be resources for the local Incident Commander.

HazMat Contractors

The Department of Environmental Quality maintains a list of companies that are providers of various hazardous materials (HazMat) services within the state. Although they do not license, certify, recommend or otherwise regulate these vendors, the state can provide a list of contractors to the responsible party "spiller" for site cleanup. If the spiller does not act promptly, the state can request a contractor to perform the cleanup and bill the spiller for the costs.

Reimbursement to Local Governments

According to Montana Code Annotated (MCA), the responsible party must reimburse local government responders for costs incurred while responding to a hazardous materials release. MCA also specifies that local government is responsible for the collection of associated response costs in addition to the costs incurred by the State Hazardous Materials Response Team or Regional Hazmat Teams when requested by the local authorities. When the local jurisdiction has received response cost reimbursement for response costs of the State Hazardous Materials Response Team, they must send the full amount of these costs to MT DES for deposit into the environmental contingency account. The responding State Hazardous Materials Response Team shall forward a copy of their response reimbursement worksheet to the local response authority for their records and documentation when seeking reimbursement from the responsible party. See Appendix L on page 67 for a sample cost recovery packet

APPENDICES

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

These bylaws can be adapted to meet the needs of your jurisdiction—this is simply an example

APPENDIX A Sample LEPC By-Laws

BY-LAWS

OF THE _____ COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE

ARTICLE I NAME AND PURPOSE

Section 1. Name. The name of this organization shall be the _____ County Local Emergency Planning Committee, hereinafter referred to as the "LEPC".

Section 2. Purpose. The purpose of the LEPC are those set out in SARA Title III/EPCRA and any other lawful purposes which are assigned to it or permitted by the County Commissioners, and/or the State Emergency Response Commission (SERC) in Montana. In keeping with the intent of the SARA Title III/EPCRA regulations, all activities of the Committee will be conducted in a manner encouraging input and participation from all segments of the community. The LEPC will develop an all-hazards emergency response and preparedness plan for the jurisdiction in which it represents and establish procedures for conducting its public information and education responsibilities. The plan shall be reviewed and updated as necessary on a regular annual basis, in accordance with Section 303 of SARA Title III.

The LEPC shall, in addition:

- 1) Receive and process requests for information from the public.
- 2) Notify the public of all LEPC meetings or activities.
- 3) With the information and reports from facilities operating within the jurisdiction of the LEPC, and analysis of the jurisdiction's transportation risks, the LEPC will perform an all-hazards analysis.
- 4) Establish and maintain a database of hazardous chemical locations and quantities in the jurisdiction.
- 5) Establish and maintain a system of data management.
- 6) Maintain information on ALL facilities that manufacture, or store, Extremely Hazardous Substances (EHS), and include this information within the emergency response and preparedness plan.

The LEPC will establish, and notify the public that all meetings, including sub-committee and ad hoc committee meetings, are open to the public. The LEPC will implement such other and related activities as may hereafter be legally required by the federal government, the State Emergency Response Commission (SERC), or the county government.

27 | Page

The LEPC will make assessments of resources necessary to implement the emergency operations plan, and make recommendations to appropriate people, agencies, and organizations regarding additional resources needed to implement the plan. The LEPC shall be instrumental in fulfilling the purpose of the Community Right-to-Know laws to increase the protection of the community from exposure to chemicals produced, used, stored, and/or transported within the planning district. Transportation hazards analysis will include those risks from commercial transportation by rail, highway, aircraft and waters of commerce.

ARTICLE II MEMBERSHIP

Membership will at all times include, at a minimum, representatives of the groups listed in Section 301 of SARA Title III. This includes equal representation of elected state and local officials, law enforcement, emergency management/DES, firefighting personnel, emergency medical services (EMS) personnel, health personnel, local environmental personnel, hospital personnel, transportation personnel, broadcast and print media personnel, and owners or operators of local facilities. **The members shall be nominated and/or approved according to the LEPC by-laws and/or by the County Commissioners and will be approved by the SERC**. Membership updates will be provided to the SERC on an annual basis or whenever there is a change in membership.

Section 1. Qualification. The organization shall consist of those members nominated and/or approved according to the LEPC by-laws and/or by the County Commissioners and approved by the SERC for membership in this body. Those people's names shall represent the various professional and community groups as designated by EPCRA. Members of the LEPC shall be residents or conduct business in the jurisdictional area of the LEPC.

Section 2. Officers. Officers shall be elected to conduct meetings, appoint subcommittees (**not required if not feasible**), keep minutes, and to otherwise accomplish the work of the committee.

Section 3. Terms of Office. The membership of the LEPC, once established, will be for a period of _____year(s). Members may be selected to succeed themselves or to move to other positions on the LEPC. No term limits are established for this jurisdiction. The term of office shall be provided in Article III, Section 3.

Section 4. Inactive Members. Appointed members shall be considered inactive when they have missed more than _____ (insert number) consecutive Committee meetings without notification to the Committee Chair or staff office of significant reasons why they were unable to attend meetings. The annual report listing members declared inactive will be provided to the County Commissioners and the SERC.

Section 5. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the LEPC by reason of the resignation, death or disqualification of a member will be filled by appointment in accordance with Article II, Section 1.

Section 6. Duties. The LEPC shall assist established emergency planning within the county with planning emergency response and public information as directed by laws and standards.

Section 7. Meetings. The LEPC shall meet at least ______. The Chairperson may call special meetings of the LEPC at such time and place as the Chairperson may determine. The Chairperson must call a special meeting of the LEPC upon the written request of _____members. The special committees shall meet as the work under their groupings proceeds.

Section 8. Quorum. The presence of _____ percent of the members of the LEPC at the opening of the meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business by the LEPC. For the purposes of Standing Committee meetings, the presence of ____ members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section 9. Agenda. Any member may request that the Chairperson place an item on the meeting agenda. If the chairperson should decline to do so, a member may have such item placed on the agenda by submitting it in writing to the Chairperson with support signatures of _____ members of the Committee.

Section 10. Rules of Order. The deliberations of all meetings of the LEPC and its subcommittees shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised.

Section 11. Notice of Meetings. An annual notice of the regular meeting schedule of the LEPC shall be published in a newspaper with regular circulation in _____ County, or on _____ County website in accordance with SARA Title III (EPCRA). This notice shall specify the meeting designated specifically for the receipt of public comments on the emergency plan.

ARTICLE III OFFICERS

The Officers of the LEPC shall be a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and a Secretary-Treasurer who shall be elected by the committee as a whole in a manner herein provided. All officers shall be members of the LEPC.

Section 1. Nomination and Election of Officers. Prior to the expiration of the officer's term of service, nomination and election of officers shall occur. Nominations will be accepted from the floor for the positions of Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary-Treasurer. The election shall be by ballot, except that when there is only one nomination for each office, election may be

by voice vote. These officers shall be selected by the majority of the members of the LEPC present and voting at the meeting.

Section 2. Term of Office. The term of the officers elected at the organizational meeting shall expire on December 31, _____. Thereafter, the term of the officers shall be for a period of _____ year(s).

Section 3. Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the LEPC; shall serve as ex officio member of all committees; and shall perform such duties and acts as necessary to accomplish the goals of the LEPC. The Chairperson shall be empowered to create such other ad hoc committees as necessary to accomplish the goals of the LEPC.

Section 4. Vice-Chairperson. Upon resignation or death or in the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall perform the duties of the Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Chairperson.

Section 5. Secretary-Treasurer. The Secretary-Treasurer in cooperation with the Information Coordinator shall be the custodian of all books, papers, documents and other property of the LEPC. The Secretary-Treasurer shall keep a true record of the proceedings of all meetings of the LEPC. Additionally, the Secretary-Treasurer in conjunction with the Information Coordinator shall attend to the business needs of the LEPC and shall maintain an accurate record of all monies received and expended for the use of the LEPC.

Section 6. Information Coordinator. The LEPC will appoint an Information Coordinator. The Coordinator shall process requests from the public for information under Section 324 (Right-to-Know), including Tier II information under Section 312. Additionally, the Coordinator shall assist the Secretary-Treasurer in records management and financial matters. The Information Coordinator shall be a non-voting member of all committees and the LEPC.

ARTICLE IV SUBCOMMITTEES (OPTIONAL)

Although subcommittees are not required, dividing the work among them can facilitate planning and data management.

Section 1. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee will consist of the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary-Treasurer, and Chairpersons of the four standing committees as described in Section 2. The Information Coordinator shall serve as a non-voting member of this committee. The duties of the Executive Committee shall be to coordinate activities of the Standing and Ad-Hoc Committees.

Section 2. Standing Committees. The following Standing Committees shall be established:

A. **Right-to-Know Committee.** This Committee shall be responsible for the formulation of all policies and procedures concerning the public's right-to-know program; the formulation of all chemical release reporting procedures; the establishment of trade secret protection procedures; and the formulation of all record keeping and information dissemination procedures for the LEPC.

B. **Public Education and Information Committee**. This Committee shall be responsible for reviewing the public alert and notification program; public relations with affected communities and public at large; all publicity of the LEPC; development of public education and information program.

C. **Hazardous Materials Facilities Liaison Committee.** This Committee shall be responsible for procedures for identification and communication with affected facilities. This Committee shall work with the Emergency Response and Resources Committee and with affected facilities to review and help the local emergency management office(s) test a hazardous substance emergency response plan for the planning district as required by law.

D. Emergency Response and Resources Committee. This Committee will work with the Hazardous Facilities Liaison Committee and with existing emergency response organizations in jurisdictions within the planning district to review and help the local emergency management office(s) test emergency response plans for the planning district as required by law. This Committee shall review existing federal, state and local plans for the purpose of coordination with the LEPC planning process.

Section 3. Meetings. Meetings of the Standing and Ad Hoc Committees may be called by the Chairperson of the LEPC or the Chairperson of the Committee as deemed necessary.

Section 4. Chairperson of the Standing Committees. The Chairperson of the Standing Committees shall be nominated and elected by their respective Committees. Voting shall be conducted as provided in Article III, Section 2.

Section 5. Membership of Standing Committees. All members must volunteer to serve on at least one Standing Committee and shall not serve on more than two Standing Committees. Final membership of the Standing Committees shall be determined by the Chairperson after consultation with the Executive Committee to ensure that all Committees have sufficient manpower to carry out their assigned tasks.

Section 6. Ad Hoc Committees. The Chairperson may create Ad Hoc Committees as necessary to perform the functions of the LEPC. Chairpersons of Ad Hoc Committees shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the LEPC.

ARTICLE V MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year shall be considered to run from July 1 to June 30.

Section 2. Indebtedness. All indebtedness incurred by the LEPC shall be approved by the Chairperson before payment by the Secretary-Treasurer.

Section 3. Approval of By-Laws. These by-laws shall become effective upon approval by a majority of those in attendance at the organization meeting.

Section 4. Disqualification. Any member who is unable to attend a meeting of the LEPC may notify the Secretary-Treasurer or Information Coordinator. Any member with _____ or more absences is subject to disqualification at the request of the LEPC to the county commissioners and the SERC.

ARTICLE VI AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Amendments. These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of members present and voting at any meeting of the LEPC provided that any amendments to these by-laws be submitted to the members in writing at least one week in advance of the meeting. Any member of the LEPC shall have the right to comment on or suggest revision to the by-laws.

ARTICLE VII RULES

EPCRA requires that the LEPC "shall establish rules by which the committee shall function. Such rules shall include provisions for public notification of committee activities, public meetings to discuss the emergency plan, public comments, response to such comments by the committee, and distribution of the emergency plan." The final rules are attached to these by-laws.

Section 1. Adoption of Rule; Publication of Proposals. The LEPC may, as necessary and proper, adopt rules of general application governing the execution of responsibilities under EPCRA and related applicable regulations. Such rules must first be published in proposed form not less than 10 days prior to final adoption by the LEPC. Proposed rules are subject to public comment during the 10-day period. The LEPC Information Coordinator is encouraged, but not required, to mail notices of the proposed rule-making to interested local government officials, industries, and citizens.

Section 2. Method of Initiating proposed Rule-Making. Any member of the LEPC may recommend the initiation of proposed rule-making. If the LEPC, by majority vote approves the proposed rule, it shall thereafter proceed to publication as provided in the preceding section.

Section 3. Method of Adopting Final Rules. Following the expiration of the 10-day comment period, the LEPC shall review all public comments and prepare a statement that responds to comments and discusses the basis for any appropriate changes to the proposal. The LEPC shall then vote on the adoption of the proposed rule. If the vote is favorable, the rule shall take effect immediately upon the time and date the notice of adoption is first published.

Section 4. Notice of Adoption. Upon adoption of any rule by the LEPC, the Information Coordinator shall also publish the LEPC's response to comments received and any changes to the proposal made in response to such comments. Publication of the final rule shall be in the same manner as that for the proposed rule.

Section 5. Emergency Rules. In emergency circumstances, the LEPC may adopt rules without prior public notice and comment, provided that no such rule will remain in effect for more than 90 days.

FINAL RULES

Definitions

Unless otherwise stated, all terms herein shall be defined in accordance with the definitions provided in the Title III of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986, PL 99-499, (the "Act") and regulations adopted in accordance therewith.

Public Notification and General Participation

A. All meetings of the LEPC or any subcommittee thereof shall be open to the public, except under circumstances where law permits otherwise. The Chairperson shall afford a reasonable period of time at the beginnings of each regular monthly meeting to accept oral public comments on any aspect of the LEPCs mission or functions.

B. Not less than once each calendar year, the LEPC shall publish, through print or electronic means, in ______ County a notice that written public comment is invited during a thirty-day period on any aspect of the LEPCs organization, membership, functions, planning process or purpose. Such notice shall comply in all respects with Section 324(b) of the Act and present a brief explanation of the LEPCs statutory purpose, the location of LEPC minutes and other records, and the name and address of the person designated to receive written comments.

The LEPC shall review all comments received and shall publish, in the manner described in subsection A of this section, responses to major issues raised in such public comments. Nothing herein shall require the LEPC to response to each and every comment received.

LEPC Participation in the Planning Process

A. Montana Code Annotated (MCA) Title 10, as amended, requires each political subdivision to prepare a local or interjurisdictional disaster and emergency plan and program.

Public Access to Information

A. In accordance with Section 324 of the Act, all information obtained from an owner or operator pursuant to EPCRA and any requested Tier II form or the Safety Data Sheet (SDS) otherwise in possession of the Committee shall be made available to the person submitting the request under this section, provided upon request of the owner or operator, the Committee shall withhold from disclosure the location of any specific chemical identified in the Tier II form.

B. All information requested to be photocopied by any member of the public, shall be provided at the sole expense of such persons. The cost of such photocopying shall be set from time to time by the Information Coordinator, with the approval of the LEPC, at a level, which will enable the LEPC to recover all reasonable expenses associated with processing the request.

Copies of the LEPC bylaws, proposed rules or rules shall be provided at no charge to the public, although the Information Coordinator is authorized to recover reasonable expenses for photocopying in the case of requests for multiple copies made by any single individual or entity.

C. Request for SDS and Other Non-Confidential Information:

1. Any person may obtain a SDS with respect to a specific facility by submitting a written request to the LEPCs Information Coordinator.

2. Any person may obtain any other non-confidential information in the possession of the LEPC by submitting a written request to the LEPCs Information Coordinator.

3. If the LEPC does not have in its possession the SDS or other information requested in subsections C1 or C2 of this section, it shall request a submission of the SDS from the owner or operator of the facility that is the subject of the request. The LEPC will only make requests to specific facilities for information, which it is required to maintain or collect pursuant to applicable law.

D. Requests for Tier II Information:

1. Any person may request Tier II information with respect to a specific facility by submitting a written request to the LEPC in accordance with the requirements of this section.

2. If the LEPC does not have in its possession the Tier II information requested in subsection D1 of this section, it shall request a submission of the Tier II form from the owner or operator of the facility that is the subject of the request, provided that the request is from a state or local official acting in his or her official capacity or the request is limited to hazardous chemicals stored at the facility in an amount in excess threshold planning quantities.

3. If the request under subsection D1 of this section does not meet the requirements of subsection D2 of this section, the LEPC may request submission of the Tier II form from the owner or operator of the facility that is the subject of the request if the request under subsection D1 of this section includes a general statement of need.

E. Trade Secrets. Except as provided in this section, all information submitted to the LEPC by facilities pursuant to EPCRA shall be public information. Other than a claim designated in this section, the LEPC will not honor any business confidentially or trade secret claims. Pursuant to Section 312 and Section 214(a) of the Act, the location of specific chemicals requested to be submitted with Tier II information shall be maintained as confidential by the LEPC provided that a claim of confidentiality is submitted with the information and satisfies all applicable requirements for such claims under EPCRA and any regulations promulgated pursuant to the same. Such information shall be exempt from disclosure by the LEPC permanently or until such time as:

1. An authorized governmental agency, and if applicable, a court or competent jurisdiction makes a final determination following any appeals, that such information not subject to a valid claim of business confidentiality or trade secret; and

2. The LEPC receives a written notice of such determination.

THIS DOCUMENTS THE CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS OF _____ COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE (LEPC) ADOPTED AT THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE LEPC ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF ____, IN THE YEAR

LEPC CHAIRPERSON (PRINTED)

LEPC CHAIRPERSON SIGNATURE/DATE

CHAIRMAN, COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (PRINTED)

CHAIRMAN, COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SIGNATURE/DATE

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

APPENDIX B

Example of LEPC Membership & Stakeholder Involvement

- Access & Functional Needs Agencies
- Advocacy Organizations
- Airport Authority
- Amateur Radio
- Animal Control Agencies
- Behavioral Health Agencies
- Business Emergency Coordinators
- Chambers of Commerce
- County Health
- Culturally & Linguistically Diverse Agencies/Organizations
- Disability Service Providers
- Education Institutions
- Elected Officials: Commissioner, Sheriff, County Clerk & Recorder, County Attorney, Mayor, etc.
- Emergency Management/DES
- Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
- Environmental Groups
- Extension Offices
- Facility Owners/Operators Storing HazMat in County
- Faith-based Organizations
- Health & Human Services
- Highway/Road Department
- Home Care Services
- Independent Living Assistance Agencies
- Individual Citizens
- Job & Family Service Agencies
- Public Transportation Agencies

- Local Fire Departments
- Local Law Enforcement
- Media Outlets: Newspaper, Website Developer, Public Information.
- Medical Advocacy Groups
- Medical Facilities/Personnel
- Medical Services Providers
- Non-profit Organizations (NGOs)
- Pharmaceutical Providers
- Private Businesses
- Representation from specific segments of community
 - o Seniors
 - Minority population
 - Non-English Speakers
 - Others
- School Board Members
- School Bus Director
- Social Advocacy Groups
- Supply chain component
 - Manufacturers
 - Distributors
 - o Suppliers
 - Logistic providers
 - Others
- Transportation Service Providers
- Utility Providers
- Volunteer Organizations
- Welfare Organizations
- Weather Agencies
- Other Pertinent Agencies

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

APPENDIX C Sample Invitation Letter to Request Participation on LEPC

[County Letterhead]

[Date]

[Name] [Address]

Re: Local Emergency Planning Committee

Dear [Enter Name]:

As you may be aware, [County] government is required under the federal Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act to have a Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC). The activities of this committee include maintenance of an Emergency Operations Plan for natural disasters and chemical accidents, receiving chemical reports from subject facilities, and making that information available to the public.

Currently, [County] LEPC is reorganizing and soliciting individuals for participation. Since your facility is subject to the reporting provisions of EPCRA and plays a vital role in the emergency planning process, it would be valuable to have a knowledgeable individual from your facility become an active member on [County] LEPC. I would like to extend an invitation for your facility to participate. Please notify me as soon as possible with your response, such expertise and knowledge would be of great value to the LEPC.

The LEPC meets [Number] times per [Month, Quarter, Year] at [Time] on the [Number] day of the month. The meetings begin promptly and last no more than [Number] hours unless there is a special presentation or a special situation that needs to be addressed.

My mailing address is [Address] or you can contact me by email at [Email Address] or reach me by phone at [Phone Number].

Sincerely,

LEPC Chairperson

APPENDIX D LEPC Self-Evaluation Tool

The following checklist has been developed for the sole purpose of conducting a self-assessment of the LEPC. These items are for internal LEPC use only and *are recommendations only*. In other words, this is another tool to the toolbox. The table below lists the criteria used for evaluating a LEPC. Place a check mark next to each item completed by the LEPC. Total the number of check marks in the "YES" column to evaluate the LEPC.

	LEPC STRUCTURE & ORGANIZATION	YES	NO	N/A
1	Achieved genuinely broad-based and balanced membership?			
2	Adopted by-laws?			
3	Hold regular, well-attended meetings (at least quarterly)?			
4	Ensured LEPC meetings are accessible and well-publicized			
	(time, place, publicity)?			
5	Provide LEPC members advance agendas and written			
	minutes?			
6	Submits annual membership list to SERC?			
7	Organized active subcommittees and established clear			
	membership roles if necessary?			
8	Produced an annual report (covering trends in accidents,			
	hazards, enforcement, drills, site-specific risk reduction, etc.)?			
9	Focused on all-hazards?			
10	Worked toward reducing vulnerability zones and accident			
	potentials?			
11	Maintained own identity independent from the host agency?			
12	Improved emergency response and mitigation?			
13	Set progress objectives (funding, participation,			
	communication, etc.) and annually evaluate progress toward			
	achieving those goals?			
14	Secured adequate funding sources (through agency budgets,			
	grants, donations, etc.)?			
	LEPC RESPONSE PLANNING	YES	NO	N/A
15	Annually review and update as necessary the EOP?			
16	Coordination exists between EHS facilities and fire			
	departments, as well as other response organizations (police,			
	hospitals, etc.)?			

17	Established alert and warning systems to notify the public?			
18	Established a means to determine the severity of a chemical			
	release or natural disaster and the area and population likely			
	to be affected?			
19	Identified potential shelters and evacuation routes?			
20	Identified the facility emergency response coordinators for			
	regulated facilities within jurisdiction?			
21	Maintain an inventory of emergency response resources			
	(equipment, facilities, and expertise)?			
22	Provided education on protective actions (evacuation/shelter-			
	in-place) to the public and first responders?			
23	Evaluated the protective capacity of shelter-in-place			
	structures?			
24	Acknowledged the limits of emergency response capabilities			
	for protecting people, property, and the environment?			
25	Received emergency response plans from the regulated			
	facilities?			
26	Conducted a hazard analysis?			
27	Ensured that hazard analyses are incorporated into plans?			
28	Established notification procedures are in place by which			
	facility emergency response coordinators will notify first			
	responders in the event of a hazardous chemical emergency.			
	COMMUNITY HAZARD ANALYSIS	YES	NO	N/A
29	Developed easily understood community maps showing EHS			
	facilities, vulnerability zones, transportation routes, etc.?			
30	Conducted a commodity flow study to identify chemicals and			
	volume of hazardous materials moving through the			
	community?			
31	Identified potential hazards from natural events such as flood,			
	tornado, earthquake, drought, winter storm, wildfire, etc.?			
32	Identified critical facilities, vulnerable environments, and			
	potentially exposed populations (e.g. schools, nursing homes,			
	residential areas, workers on site)?			
33	Prepared or obtained worst-case and lesser release scenarios at			
	each EHS facility and those in transportation?			
34	Assessed potential risks and developed a prioritized list?			3.44
	LEPC TRAINING & EXERCISE	YES	NO	N/A

35	Developed emergency response drills and exercises to evaluate			
	the effectiveness of our EOP?			
36	Established a schedule to regularly conduct drills and			
	emergency response exercises?			
37	Follows HSEEP guidelines when planning and executing			
	exercises?			
38	At least one LEPC member/representative participated in the			
	annual Training and Exercise Planning Workshop (T&EPW)?			
39	Sponsored training for fire, medical, police, hazmat teams,			
	hospitals, and other response personnel?			
40	Held seminars for the public on the hazards within their			
	community and how they can protect life and property?			
41	Participated in drills and exercises with regulated facilities			
	within the jurisdiction?			
	COMMUNITY RIGHT-TO-KNOW	YES	NO	N/A
42	Publicized availability of right-to-know information?			
43	Organized data for ease of access and analysis?			
44	Established a convenient information request process?			
45	Provided Tier II chemical storage information as required?			
46	Publicized community hazard maps with vulnerability zones			
	through printed or electronic media?			
47	Discussed or publicized options for reducing vulnerable zones			
	(e.g. safer technologies)?			
48	Regularly contacts each reporting facility to promote better			
	understanding of EPCRA requirements by the facility owner			
	or operator?			
49	Provides information on EPCRA to new businesses?			
50	Ensures that all required facilities that must annually report			
	extremely hazardous substance are submitting their Tier II			
	forms?			
	ACCIDENT PREVENTION	YES	NO	N/A
51	Promoted exploration of inherently safer technologies (e.g.			
	safer chemicals, lower pressure or temperatures, less storage,			
	fewer shipments)?			
52	Promoted other facility safety improvements (e.g. secondary			
	containment, automatic shutoffs, alarms, etc.)?			

53	Provided the hazard analysis to planning commissions, zoning			
	boards, public works, citizen advisory councils, and other local			
	entities?			
54	Analyzed spill reports for response and prevention lessons?			
	PUBLIC AWARENESS	YES	NO	N/A
55	Maintains a LEPC website for the public to access?			
56	Prints/publishes an annual EPCRA notice for local media or			
	displays the EPCRA public notice on our website?			
57	Provides public service announcements concerning all-hazard			
	preparedness to local radio and television stations?			
58	Conducts activities in the community to heighten the public's			
	awareness of hazards in the community?			
59	Works with other county agencies when developing property			
	(new housing, industry, schools, etc.)			

SCORING: TOTAL NUMBER IN "YES" COLUMN

- 59-51 Outstanding 50-41 Good
- 40-31 Progressing
- 30-21 Mediocre
- 20-11 Inadequate
- 10-0 Non-Functioning

APPENDIX E Holding an Effective LEPC Meeting

The LEPC has many tasks it must perform, the members are volunteers, their time is valuable and to be successful the LEPC must operate in a businesslike manner. A well thought out agenda is an important tool for conducting effective meetings. The agenda should identify specific issues to be discussed at the meeting. If time constraints are a factor, each agenda item may be assigned a time limit. Send each committee member a copy of the completed agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. The advanced time necessary for the members to review the agenda is one to two weeks. Send any information pertinent to the upcoming meeting along with the agenda. This way, members can prepare themselves for the meeting in advance. In order to keep LEPC members motivated, regular scheduling of meetings is essential.

Public meetings offer a clear and immediate benefit; however, public meetings should be used sparingly. LEPCs should hold public meetings to present or review emergency plans. A large public meeting could be useful after an accident when many people have questions. If a current emergency plan has become controversial, a meeting could offer the community a chance at wider participation in revising it.

Regular meetings offer members the opportunity to continue contingency plan review and revision. Regular meetings also offer the opportunity for the LEPC to broaden its role in the community to meet the capabilities and the commitment of its members. The following guidelines for conducting a meeting are presented for your review and consideration:

BEFORE THE MEETING

- Have a specific purpose/objective for each meeting.
- Identify topics and material to be covered.
- Invite key people, guest speakers / presenters.
- Establish an appropriate time frame.
- PREPARE AN AGENDA.
- Notify membership of meeting times and distribute the agenda (early).
- Make logistical arrangements, reserve space, seating, audio/video, etc.

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE MEETING

- Start on time.
- Clarify the purpose/objective of the meeting.
- Introduce guests or new personnel.
- Clarify ground rules, i.e. one topic/speaker at a time, etc.
- Establish time objective.

DURING THE MEETING

- Make an opening statement, review the minutes of the last meeting.
- Focus on one agenda item at a time, keep the meeting on track.
- Collect and clarify relevant information.
- Maintain control over time and discussions.
- Record ideas and action items.
- Summarize information discussed.
- Reach agreement on specified decisions and actions.

AT THE END OF THE MEETING

- Review action items and responsibilities (who will do what, when).
- Summarize and set follow-up date(s).

AFTER THE MEETING

- Prepare minutes and/or follow-up correspondence if necessary.
- Follow-up on action items.
- Ask yourself, "What went well?" and "What could be improved?".

GUIDELINES FOR BECOMING A BETTER PARTICIPANT AT MEETINGS

The LEPC is composed of individuals that represent various types of agencies, departments, organizations, groups or occupations within the planning district. These members must represent their constituents in ALL LEPC activities and must provide a channel of information and coordination. The following guidelines outline action each individual member should consider in order to become a better informed and more productive participant in the activities of the committee.

BEFORE THE MEETING

- Review the agenda items, clarify the purpose of the meeting.
- Consider your input in regards to agenda items.
- Gather/prepare any materials/information you may need.
- Arrange material to present in a clear and concise manner.
- Take writing materials with you to the meeting.

DURING THE MEETING

- Arrive on time.
- Be seated and ready to go at the start time.
- Participate in discussions and activities.
- LISTEN.
- Stay on the subject being presented.
- Present your information and ideas clearly/concisely.
- Avoid side conversations, pay attention, and be polite.
- Take your own notes, don't rely on the minutes of the meeting.

• Leave attitudes at the door.

AT THE END OF THE MEETING

- Clarify items requiring your actions.
- Ask yourself "Did I represent my constituents?".

PROVEN IDEAS TO HELP KEEP COMMITTEES ACTIVE

- <u>Conduct Annual Meeting to Review the Plan</u>. Provide an opportunity for each first responder department to review with the Committee their roles and missions during a response as detailed by the plan. This agenda item allows the committee to meet one of the legislated mandates (annual review of the plan)
- <u>Conduct a Meeting Near the Tier II Report Deadline</u>. This meeting provides an opportunity for facilities to hand deliver Tier II reports to the Committee. Additionally, some Committees utilize this meeting to provide assistance to facilities in completing Tier II forms. This process helps both the Committee and facility in documenting more accurate reports and more importantly it serves as a reminder to smaller industries that Tier II forms are due.
- <u>Invite Guest Speakers to Address Topics of Interest to Members</u>. Topics that are perennial favorites are: cost recovery, district HazMat team response considerations, industry safety programs, and clean up contractor considerations. Governmental agencies such as Montana Disaster & Emergency Services, HazMat Team representatives, EPA, local industry, and clean-up contractor representatives are generally willing to come to present material.
- <u>Conduct an After Action Meeting for Incident Response</u>. Conducting a review of a local response to identify best practices as well as lessons learned is a unique opportunity to incorporate changes to the Plan.
- <u>Conduct a Facility Process Review</u>. The review can serve as an awareness tool for the responder community. Having an industry explain how and why they use hazardous substances can be a beneficial means of improving awareness of the specific facility and the hazardous substances used. It also familiarizes the responders where the various hazardous substances are used or stored.
- <u>Conduct Review of Any New Regulation of Law</u>. Reviewing any new law or regulation recently passed by a governmental body or governing standard organization (National Fire Protection Association) that impacts the Committee allows members to keep current on the multitude of laws and regulations.
- <u>Conduct a Review of Available Software</u>. There are many software programs that are available to industry or the emergency response community to help with topics associated with committee activities. CAMEO and Tier II Submit software are all public domain programs that can provide assistance to response agencies and the LEPC.
- <u>Tour Facilities within the Jurisdiction</u>. Touring a regulated facility in the county is an effective way to connect the private and public sectors. It allows LEPC members to become more familiar with the hazardous materials within their jurisdiction. LEPCs can also tour

non-regulated facilities, such as the local Humane Society, to review their emergency operations plans and discuss how to coordinate efforts during a disaster.

- <u>Conduct Table-Top Exercises</u>. LEPC meetings are the ideal location to discuss potential disaster scenarios and identify how each agency would coordinate with one another and respond to the disaster. By making the scenarios realistic, the input provided by the LEPC members can be incorporated into the emergency operations plan or hazard specific annexes. Table-top exercises provide a great opportunity to identify where additional planning is required. The most effective table-top exercise scenarios are those that are inclusive of all the LEPC members and the organizations they represent.
- <u>Public Outreach Program</u>. Letting the community know what the LEPC does should be a long term process involving the skills and interests of committee members. Building a web page, designing posters and brochures, even public speaking are excellent ways to engage members skills and interests and make them feel important to the committee. As an added benefit, interaction with the public will not only spread the word about EPCRA and your committee, but it also gives you a feel for what the concerns are within your community.

APPENDIX F Sample LEPC Meeting Agenda

[County] Local Emergency Planning Committee [LEPC Mailing Address] [LEPC Phone Number]

Date: Time: Location:

Agenda

1. Roll Call

- 2. Approval of Minutes
- 3. Communications/Mail Slot
- 4. Reports of Subcommittees
- 5. Old (Unfinished) Business
- 6. Special Presentations
- 7. New Business
- 8. Public Comments
- 9. Date, time, place and tentative agenda of the next regular meeting
- 10. Adjournment

APPENDIX G Robert's Rules of Order

Parliamentary Procedure is a set of rules for conduct at meetings that allows everyone to be heard and to make decisions without confusion. Parliamentary Procedure is important because it's a time tested method of conducting business at meetings and public gatherings. It can be adapted to fit the needs of any organization. Today, Robert's Rules of Order newly revised is the basic handbook of operation for most clubs, organizations and other groups. So it's important that everyone know these basic rules!

Organizations using parliamentary procedure usually follow a fixed order of business. Below is a typical example:

- 1) Call to order.
- 2) Roll call of members present.
- 3) Reading of minutes of last meeting.
- 4) Officers' reports.
- 5) Committee reports.
- 6) Special orders—important business previously designated for consideration at this meeting.
- 7) Unfinished business.
- 8) New business.
- 9) Announcements.
- 10) Adjournment.

The method used by members to express themselves is in the form of moving motions. A motion is a proposal that the entire membership take action or a stand on an issue. Individual members can:

- 1) Call to order.
- 2) Second motions.
- 3) Debate motions.
- 4) Vote on motions.

There are four Basic Types of Motions:

1. Main Motions: The purpose of a main motion is to introduce items to the membership for their consideration. They cannot be made when any other motion is on the floor, and yield to privileged, subsidiary, and incidental motions.

2. Subsidiary Motions: Their purpose is to change or affect how a main motion is handled, and is voted on before a main motion.

3. Privileged Motions: Their purpose is to bring up items that are urgent about special or important matters unrelated to pending business.

4. Incidental Motions: Their purpose is to provide a means of questioning procedure concerning other motions and must be considered before the other motion.

How are Motions Presented?

1. Obtaining the floor

- Wait until the last speaker has finished.
- Rise and address the Chairman by saying, "Mr. Chairman, or Mr. President."
- Wait until the Chairman recognizes you.

2. Make Your Motion

- Speak in a clear and concise manner.
- Always state a motion affirmatively. Say, "I move that we ..." rather than, "I move that we do not ..."
- Avoid personalities and stay on your subject.

3. Wait for Someone to Second Your Motion

4. Another member will second your motion or the Chairman will call for a second.

5. If there is no second to your motion it is lost.

6. The Chairman States Your Motion

- The Chairman will say, "It has been moved and seconded that we ..." Thus placing your motion before the membership for consideration and action.
- The membership then either debates your motion, or may move directly to a vote.
- Once your motion is presented to the membership by the chairman it becomes "assembly property", and cannot be changed by you without the consent of the members.

7. Expanding on Your Motion

- The time for you to speak in favor of your motion is at this point in time, rather than at the time you present it.
- The mover is always allowed to speak first.
- All comments and debate must be directed to the chairman.
- Keep to the time limit for speaking that has been established.
- The mover may speak again only after other speakers are finished, unless called upon by the Chairman.

8. Putting the Question to the Membership

• The Chairman asks, "Are you ready to vote on the question?"

- If there is no more discussion, a vote is taken.
- On a motion to move the previous question may be adapted.

Voting on a Motion:

The method of vote on any motion depends on the situation and the by-laws of policy of your organization. There are five methods used to vote by most organizations, they are:

- 1) **By Voice** -- The Chairman asks those in favor to say, "Aye", those opposed to say "No". Any member may move for an exact count.
- 2) **By Roll Call** -- Each member answers "yes" or "no" as his name is called. This method is used when a record of each person's vote is required.
- 3) **By General Consent** -- When a motion is not likely to be opposed, the Chairman says, "if there is no objection ..." The membership shows agreement by their silence, however if one member says, "I object," the item must be put to a vote.
- 4) **By Division** -- This is a slight verification of a voice vote. It does not require a count unless the chairman so desires. Members raise their hands or stand.
- 5) **By Ballot** -- Members write their vote on a slip of paper; this method is used when secrecy is desired.

There are two other motions that are commonly used that relate to voting.

- 1) **Motion to Table** -- This motion is often used in the attempt to "kill" a motion. The option is always present, however, to "take from the table", for reconsideration by the membership.
- 2) **Motion to Postpone Indefinitely** -- This is often used as a means of parliamentary strategy and allows opponents of motion to test their strength without an actual vote being taken. Also, debate is once again open on the main motion.

Parliamentary Procedure is the best way to get things done at your meetings. But, it will only work if you use it properly:

- 1) Allow motions that are in order.
- 2) Have members obtain the floor properly.
- 3) Speak clearly and concisely.
- 4) Obey the rules of debate.
- 5) Most importantly, *BE COURTEOUS*.

Robert's Rules of Order Motion Charts

Part 1. Main Motions. These motions are listed in order of precedence. A motion can be introduced if it is higher on the chart than the pending motion (§ indicates the section from Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised—10th Edition)

§	PURPOSE:	YOU SAY:	Interrupt? 2nd?		Debate ?	Amend?	Vote?
§21	Close meeting	I move to adjourn	NO	YES	NO	NO	Majority
§20	Take break	I move to recess for	NO	YES	NO	YES	Majority
§19	Register complaint	I rise to a question of privilege	YES	NO	NO	NO	None
§18	Make follow agenda	I call for the orders of the day	YES	NO	NO	NO	None
§17	Lay aside temporarily	I move to lay the question on the table			NO	Majority	
§16	Close debate	I move the previous question NO YES NO		NO	2/3		
§15	Limit or extend debate	I move that debate be limited to NO YES NO		NO	YES	2/3	
§14	Postpone to a certain time	I move to postpone the motion to			YES	YES	Majority
§13	Refer to committee	I move to refer the motion to	NO YES		YES	YES	Majority
§12	Modify wording of motion	I move to amend the motion by	NO	YES	YES	YES	Majority
§11	Kill main motion	I move that the motion be		YES	YES	NO	Majority
§10	Bring business before an assembly (a main motion)	I move that [or "to"]	NO	YES	YES	YES	Majority

Part 2. Incidental Motions. No order of precedence. These motions arise incidentally and are decided immediately.

§	PURPOSE:	YOU SAY:	Interrupt?	2nd?	Debate?	Amend?	Vote?
§23	Enforce rules	Point of Order	YES	NO	NO	NO	None
§24	Submit matter to assembly	I appeal from the decision of the Chair	YES	YES	VARIES	NO	Majority
§25	Suspend rules	I move to suspend the NO YES NO rules		NO	2/3		
§26	Avoid main motion altogether	I object to the consideration of the question	YES	NO	NO	NO	2/3
§27	Divide motion I move to divide the question		NO	YES	NO	YES	Majority
§29	Demand a rising vote	I move for a rising vote	I move for a rising vote YES NO N		NO	NO	None
§33	Parliamentary law question	Parliamentary inquiry	YES	NO	NO	NO	None
§33	Request for information	Point of information	YES	NO	NO	NO	None

54 | Page

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

Part 3. Motions That Bring a Question Again Before the Assembly. No order of precedence. Introduce only when nothing else is pending.

§	PURPOSE:	YOU SAY:	Interrupt?	2nd?	Debate?	Amend?	Vote?
§34	Take matter from table	I move to take from the table	NO	YES	NO	NO	Majority
§35	Cancel previous action	I move to rescind	NO	YES	YES	YES	2/3 or Majority with notice
§37	Reconsider motion	I move to reconsider	NO	YES	Varies	NO	Majority

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

APPENDIX H Example EPCRA Notice of Publication

PUBLIC NOTICE

ACCESSIBILITY OF SARA TITLE III HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE INFORMATION

Section 324 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act, also known as SARA Title III (Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986, PL99-499) requires public notice at least once annually informing the public of the means to access information about extremely hazardous substances that are manufactured, stored, and used within their community. Follow-up emergency notices may subsequently be issued.

Accordingly, information concerning LEPC meetings, SARA Title III hazardous materials						
planning which is included in our	County Emergency Operations Response Plan,					
safety data sheets (SDS), hazardous chemical	inventory forms, listing extremely hazardous					
substances manufactured, stored, or used with	hin County can be obtained during					
normal business hours by contacting	at					

APPENDIX I

Montana Code Annotated (MCA) Title 10, Chapter 3, Part 12: Response to Hazardous Materials Incidents

10-3-1201. Short Title. This part may be cited as the "Montana Response to Hazardous Material Incidents Act".

10-3-1202. Purpose. It is the purpose of this part to:

- 1) Provide that adequate hazardous material emergency response capability exists in the state in order to protect the health and safety of Montana citizens and the environment.
- 2) Delineate those state agencies responsible for responding to a hazardous material incident.
- 3) Provide for the control and management of incidents.
- 4) Provide for the cooperation of other state agencies and local governments in incident management.
- 5) Provide for the formulation of a comprehensive, statewide incident management and hazardous material response support plan.

10-3-1203. Definitions. As used in this part, the following definitions apply:

- 1) "Commission" means the state emergency response commission.
- 2) "Division" means the division of disaster and emergency services in the department of military affairs.
- 3) "Duration of response" means a period of time beginning when an emergency responder is requested by the appropriate authority to respond to an incident and ending when the responder is release from the incident by the incident commander and returned to the emergency responder's place of residence by the most direct route and includes the time required to replace and return all materials used for the incident to the same or similar condition and state of readiness as before the incident.
- 4) "Hazardous Material" means a hazardous substance, a hazardous or deleterious substance as defined in 75-10-701, radioactive material, or a combination of a hazardous substance, a hazardous or deleterious substance, and radioactive material.
- 5) "Hazardous material incident response team" means an organized group of trained response personnel, operating under an emergency response plan and appropriate standard operating procedures, that is expected to perform work to control an actual release or threatened release of hazardous material requiring close approach to the material, to respond to releases or threatened release of hazardous material for the purpose of control or stabilization of the incident, and to provide technical assistance to local jurisdictions.
- 6) (a) "Hazardous substance" means flammable solids, semisolids, liquids, or gases; poisons; explosives; corrosives; compressed gases; reactive or toxic chemicals; irritants; or biological agents. (b) The term does not include radioactive material.
- 7) "Incident" means an event involving the release or threat of release involving hazardous material that may cause injury to persons, the environment, or property.
- 8) "Incident Commander" means the person who is designated in the local emergency operations

plan.

- 9) "Local emergency operations plan" means the local and inter-jurisdictional disaster and emergency plan developed pursuant to 10-3-401.
- 10) "Local emergency response authority" means the agency designated by the city, county, or commission to be responsible for the management of an incident at the local level.
- 11) "Orphaned hazardous material," means hazardous material of which the owner cannot be identified.
- 12) "Plan," means the Montana incident management and hazardous material response support plan.
- 13) (a) "Radioactive material" means any material or combination of material that spontaneously emits ionizing radiation. (b) The term does not include material in which the specific activity is not greater than 0.002 micro curies per gram of material unless the material is determined to be radioactive by the U.S. environmental protection agency or the U.S. occupational safety and health administration.
- 14) "State hazardous material incident response team" means persons who are designated as state employees by the commission while they are engaged in activities as provided for in 10-3-1204 and may include members of the commission and local and state government responders.
- 15) "Threat of release" or "threatened release" means an indication of the possibility of the release of a hazardous material into the environment.

Section 1. Section 10-3-1204, MCA, is amended to read:

10-3-1204. State Emergency Response Commission.

- 1) There is a state emergency response commission that is attached to the department for administrative purposes. The commission consists of 29 members appointed by the governor. The commission must include representatives of the National Guard, the air force, the department of environmental quality, the division, the department of transportation, the department of justice, the department of natural resources and conservation, the department of public health and human services, a fire service association, the fire training school, the emergency medical services and trauma systems section of the public health and safety division in the department of public health and human services, the department of fish, wildlife, and parks, the department of agriculture, Montana hospitals, an emergency medical services association, a law enforcement association, an emergency management association, a public health-related association, a trucking association, a utility company doing business in Montana, a railroad company doing business in Montana, Montana's petroleum industry, Montana's insurance industry, the university system, a tribal emergency response commission, the national weather service, the Montana association of counties, the Montana league of cities and towns, and the office of the governor. At least one representative must be a member of a local emergency planning committee. Members of the commission serve a term of 4 years and may be reappointed. The members shall serve without compensation. The governor shall appoint two presiding officers from the appointees, who shall act as copresiding officers.
- 2) The commission shall implement the provisions of this part, and in so doing; the commission

may create and implement a state hazardous material incident response team to respond to incidents. The members of the team must be certified in accordance with the plan.

- 3) The commission may enter into written agreements with each entity or person providing equipment or services to the state hazardous material incident response team.
- 4) The commission or its designee may direct that the state hazardous material incident response team be available and respond, when requested by a local emergency response authority, to incidents according to the plan.
- 5) The commission may contract with persons to meet state emergency response needs for the state hazardous material incident response team.
- 6) The commission may advise, consult, cooperate, and enter into agreements with agencies of the state and federal government, other states and their state agencies, cities, counties, tribal governments, and other persons concerned with emergency response and matters relating to and arising out of incidents.
- 7) The commission may encourage, participate in, or conduct studies, investigations, training, research, and demonstrations for and with the state hazardous material incident response team, local emergency responders, and other interested persons.
- 8) The commission may collect and disseminate information relating to emergency response to incidents.
- 9) The commission may accept and administer grants, gifts, or other funds, conditional or otherwise, made to the state for emergency response activities provided for in this part.
- 10) The commission may prepare, coordinate, implement, and update a plan, which coordinates state and local emergency authorities, to respond to incidents within the state. The plan must be consistent with this part. All state emergency response responsibilities relating to an incident must be defined by the plan.
- 11) The commission has the powers and duties of a state emergency response commission under the federal Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. 11001, et seq., except that the division shall oversee the creation, annual local review, and exercise and revision of the local emergency operations plan as provided by state law.
- 12) The commission shall promulgate rules and procedures limited to cost recovery procedures, certification of state response team members, and deployment of the state hazardous material incident response team, which must be a part of the plan.
- 13) The commission shall act as an all-hazard advisory board to the division by:(a) Assisting the division in carrying out its responsibilities by providing the division with recommendations on issues pertaining to all-hazard emergency management; and (b) Authorizing the establishment of subcommittees to develop and provide the recommendations called for in subsection (13)(a).
- 14) All state agencies and institutions shall cooperate with the commission in the commission's efforts to carry out its duties under this part. **10-3-1205 and 10-3-1206 reserved.**

10-3-1207 Commission budget and expenditures.

- 1) The commission shall submit its budget to the division.
- 2) The commission shall expend any funds appropriate to it in the following priority:
 - (a) Payment of workers' compensation premiums for coverage of state hazardous material incident response team members;

- (b) Training activities for the state hazardous material incident response team;
- (c) Equal payments to each hazardous material incident response team as compensation for duties established in the plan; and
- (d) Any remaining funds to be used at the discretion of the commission for programs related to the plan.

10-3-1208 Local emergency response authorities--designation.

- 1) The governing body of each incorporated city and county shall designate the local emergency response authority for incidents that occur within its jurisdiction.
- 2) Local emergency response authority members must be trained in hazardous material incident response in compliance with 29 CFR 1910.120(q), as amended.
- 3) An incorporated city may, with the mutual consent of the county, designate the county as its local emergency response authority and participate in the local emergency operations plan for incident response.
- 4) If an incident occurs in an area in which local emergency response authority has not been designated, the presiding officer of the board of county commissioners must be the local emergency response authority for the incident for the purposes of this part.

10-3-1209 Local emergency response authorities – powers and duties.

- Every local emergency response authority designated pursuant to this part shall respond to incidents occurring within its jurisdiction according to the local emergency operations plan. The local emergency response authority shall also respond to an incident that initially occurs within its jurisdiction but spreads to another jurisdiction. If an incident occurs on a boundary between two jurisdictions or in an area where the jurisdiction is not readily ascertainable, the first local emergency response authority to arrive at the scene of the incident shall perform the initial emergency response duties.
- 2) Each local emergency response authority shall define in writing its incident management system and specifically define the agency that will be the incident commander.
- 3) The incident commander shall declare that the emergency situation associated with an incident has ended when the acute threat to public health and safety or to the environment has been sufficiently addressed.

10-3-1210 Controlling provisions for state of emergency—liability of responsible persons. In the event that a state of emergency is declared by proper authority pursuant to 10-3-3012, as the result of an incident, the provisions of 10-3-303 govern.

10-3-1211 Notification of release.

- A person responsible for reporting a release under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, 42 U.S.C. 9603, shall, as soon as practicable after obtaining the knowledge of a required reportable release, other than a permitted release, notify the division of the release.
- 2) The division shall notify the commission of releases or threatened releases as defined in the plan.
- 3) The division shall immediately notify the department of environmental quality of any

release reported and who will respond according to the plan.

- 4) Any person who does not make notification in accordance with the provisions of this section is liable for a civil penalty not to exceed \$10,000 for each day the violation continues to a maximum of \$100,000. These penalties are in addition to any other penalties imposed by law. All penalties collected must be deposited in the environmental contingency account provided for in 75-1-1101.
- 5) Compliance with the reporting requirements of this section does not relieve any person of the obligation to report the same incident under any other applicable state or federal law, regulation, or other requirement.

10-3-1212 and 10-3-1213 reserved.

10-3-1214 Right to reimbursement.

- 1) State hazardous material incident response team members may submit claims to the commission for reimbursement of document costs incurred as a result of the team's response to an incident. Reimbursement for the costs may not exceed the duration of the response.
- 2) A party who is not a part of the state hazardous material incident response team is not liable under federal or state law may submit a claim to the commission for costs if the claim is associated with a request by the state hazardous material incident response team or the commission.
- 3) Claims for reimbursement must be submitted to the commission within 60 days after termination of the response to the incident for the state's determination of payment, if any.
- 4) Reimbursement may be made only after the commission finds that the actions by the applicant were taken in response to an incident as defined in this part and if adequate funds are available.

10-3-1215 Deficiency warrants for reimbursement of response costs.

- (a) The commission shall review all claims for reimbursement and make recommendations to the governor as to payment or nonpayment of the claims within 90 days of receipt. The governor may authorize the issuance of warrants to be paid from the environmental contingency account provided for in 75-1-1101 to the limit of the fund balance for the purpose of reimbursing reasonable and documented costs associated with emergency actions taken pursuant to this part. (b) The costs of routine firefighting procedures are not reimbursable costs under this part.
- 2) Reimbursement must be in accordance with the schedule defined in the plan.
- 3) The decision of the governor is final and non-appealable.
- 4) This section may not be construed to change or impair any right of recovery or subrogation arising under any other provision of law.

10-3-1216 Cost recovery and civil remedies.

- 1) Cost recovery is the duty of the city or county having authority where an incident occurred.
- 2) The commission shall ensure the recovery of state expenditures according to the plan.
- 3) A person responsible for an incident is liable for attorney fees and costs of the

commission incurred in recovering costs associated with responding to an incident.

- 4) The remedy for the recovery of emergency response costs identified in this part is in addition to any other remedy for recovery of the costs provided by applicable federal or state law.
- 5) Any person who receives compensation for the emergency response costs pursuant to any other federal or state law is precluded from recovering compensation for those costs pursuant to this chapter.
- 6) Except for the commission, the state hazardous material incident response team, and the local emergency response authority, this part does not otherwise affect or modify in any way the obligations or liability of any person under any other provision of state or federal law, including
- 7) Common law, for damages, injury or loss resulting from the release of any hazardous material or for remedial action or the costs of remedial action for a release or threatened release.
- 8) Any person who is not a liable party under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Commission, and Liability Act of 1980, 42 U.S.C. 9601, et seq., as amended, or the Comprehensive Environmental Cleanup and Responsibility Act, Title 75, chapter 10, part 7, and who renders assistance in response to an emergency situation associated with an incident may file a civil action against the responsible party for recoverable costs that have not been reimbursed by the state.
- 9) Recoveries by the state for reimbursed costs under this section must be deposited in the environmental contingency account to offset amounts paid as reimbursement.
- 10) (a) In the event of orphaned hazardous material or the inability of the state to recover the full cost associated with an incident and the cost of collection described in this section, the state shall recover from the city or county having authority where the incident occurred an amount equal to 25% of the total cost identified pursuant to this part. (b) When the hazardous material incident occurs in or involves multiple jurisdictions, the collectible amount must be equally divided among the jurisdictions.

10-3-1217 Liability of persons and response team members rendering assistance.

The state or a political subdivision of the state, the commission, the local emergency response authority, and the state hazardous material incident response team or, except for willful misconduct, gross negligence, or bad faith, an employee, representative, or agent of the state or a political subdivision of the state, the commission, the local emergency response authority, and the state hazardous material incident response teams is not liable under this part for injuries, costs, damages, expenses, or other liabilities resulting from the release or threatened release or remedial action resulting from the release or threatened release of a hazardous material. The immunity includes but is not limited to indemnifications, contribution, or third-party claims for wrongful death, personal injury, illness, loss or damages to property, or economic loss. A person becomes a member of the state hazardous material incident response team when the person is contacted, dispatched, or requested for response regardless of the person's location.

10-3-1218 Required assistance in hazardous material incident.

An owner or agent of the owner of a hazardous material involved in an incident, a person causing an incident, a person transporting a hazardous material involved in an incident, and a person owning or occupying property involved in an incident shall assist the state as requested by the incident commander in responding to an emergency situation associated with the incident as may be necessary to address an acute threat to public health or safety or to the environment until the incident commander declares that the emergency situation is over.

APPENDIX J Sample LEPC Membership Roster

LEPC Membership Roster

In compliance with the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act (EPCRA) the following individuals are submitted to the State Emergency Response Commission (SERC) as members of the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC). LEPC Membership will be updated and submitted annually.

COUNTY:

First Name	Last Name	Organization/Agency	Sector Represented

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

Version 2.0

APPENDIX K

EPA TIER II Reporting Form & Instruction

Note: Tier II Reporting to SERC is done through E-Plan which is administered by DEQ

Check if information below is identic	T Emergency and Ha	lier Two	eporting Period: Jar nventory	For Offici State ID#. Date Reco	al Use Or	
Facility Identification		330 0000	18 CT - 1			
Name	Maximum No. of □ N/A	Occupants:		Manned	□Unma	nned
Street	County	City		State)	Zip
Latitude	Longitude	91 81 - 81	NAICS Code	Ph (one Numbe)	er (optional)
Dun & Bradstreet Number	TRI Facility ID: □ N/A	111.59	RMP F∉ □ N/A	icility ID:		
Subject to Emergency Planning under S	ection 302 of EPCRA (40 CFR pa	art 355)?			□ Yes	□ No
Subject to Chemical Accident Preventio	n under Section 112(r) of CAA (4	0 CFR part 68, Risk Ma	inagement Program)'	?	□ Yes	🗆 No
Owner or Operator Information		Parent Company I	nformation (optiona	al)		
Name		Name	Dur	& Bradstree	et Number:	
Address		Address				
Phone Number Email		Phone Number	Email			
Facility Emergency Coordinator (if ap	plicable)	Tier II Information	Contact			
Name Title		Name	Title			
Email Address		Email Address		1		
Phone Number 2 () (4-hour Phone)	Phone Number				
	Emerg	ency Contacts				
Name		Name				
Title		Title				
Phone Number	24-hour Phone	Phone Number	24	-hour Phone	1.1	
Email Address		Email Address				1.
Certification (Read and sign after com	pleting all sections)		Reporting Weight Range			
		Range Code	Fre	m		То
I certify under penalty of law that I h am familiar with the information sub , and that based on my inquiry of thos obtaining the information, I believe the true, accurate and	mitted in pages one through e individuals responsible for t the submitted information is	01 02 03 04 05 06 07	1, 5, 10, 25,	0 100 500 000 000 000 000		99 499 4,999 4,999 24,999 49,999
Name and official title of owner/op authorized repres		08 09 10 11			•	74,99 99,99 499,99 999,99
Signature D	ate Signed	12 13	1,000, 10,000,	000	Greater th	9,999,99 nan 10 millior
The public reporting and recordkeeping the Agency's need for this information, th including through the use of automated of 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington address.	e accuracy of the provided burden ollection techniques to the Directo	estimates, and any sugger Collection Strategies I	gested methods for mi Division, U.S. Environr	nimizing resp nental Protec	ondent bur tion Agency	rden, (2822T).

EPA Form No. 8700-30

OMB Control No. 2050-0072 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018

Page 1 of ____

Oty Type of storage Storage Conditions Storage (Pressure, Temperature) Storage ount Intervention Intervention Intervention ount Intervention Intervention isite: Intervention Intervention ount of Intervention Intervention		and the second sec	State of the second state				
If information below is identical to the information submitted File Maximum Amount Eves Condidential: Name: Sudden Sudden Sudden Sudden Evession Eves Eves </th <th>Chemical Description</th> <th>Physical Healtt Hazard</th> <th></th> <th>Type of Storage</th> <th>Storage Conditions (Pressure, Temperature)</th> <th>Storage Locations</th> <th>Additional Reporting Information (Optional)</th>	Chemical Description	Physical Healtt Hazard		Type of Storage	Storage Conditions (Pressure, Temperature)	Storage Locations	Additional Reporting Information (Optional)
es No Reactive Average Daily [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Chronici [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Delayed [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Delayed [-Liquid Cass No of days on site: No of days on site: [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Delayed [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Delayed [-Liquid Cass No of days on site: No of days on site: [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Delayed [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Delayed [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Delayed [-Liquid Cass No of days on site: Delayed [-Liquid Cass No of days on site: Delayed [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret No of days on site: [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Parage Code: [-Liquid Cass Trade Secret Delayed [-Liquid Cass No of days on site: Delayed [-Liqu	□ Check if information below is identical to the information last year. Chemical Name:		51 Dec. 31				☐ Below Reporting Thresholds (optional)
Ind India India Case India Delayed No. of days on site: Indiantial Chronic) No. of days on site: No. of days on site: No. of days on site: Indiantial Chronic) Fire Namunt Maximum Amount Indiantial: Indiantial Fire Trade Secret Name Indiantial: Indiantial: Indiantial Indiantial Name Name Indiantial: Indiantial: Indiantial Indiantial Name Name Indiantial: Indiantial: Indiantial Indiantial Indiantial Indiantial: Indiantial: Indiantial: Indiantial Indiantial Indiantial Indiantial Indiantial: Indiantial: Indiantial Indiantial Indiantial Indindiantial: Indiantial	(es 🗌 No						☐ State or Local Requirements
at: Confidential: at: Maximum Amount at: Confidential: at: Maximum Amount at: Confidential: at: Sudden e or Product Name: Sudden io: Intege Code: io: Intege Code: io: Intege Code: id: I.quid		Providence of the second se		Marca State	yr en ge glegge yr	51 ₁₁₁	
0. Inot Available Average Daily id Liquid Gas Trade Secret Yes No Reactive Amount (Total Amount (Total Mixture) Yes No Immediate Yes No Immediate (Acute) No. of days on site: (Acute) No. of days on site: (Chronic) Maximum Amount of each EHS in the Maximum Amount of	□ Check if information below is identical to the information last year. Mixture or Product Name:					tia	☐ Below Reporting Thresholds
(Chronic) (Chronic)	io.		ه <u>م</u>				(optional) State or Local Requirements
	EHS(s) Name (if applicable):		58 7755		51		
	CAS No. Non-EHS(s) Name (optional):		Maximum Amount of each EHS in the Mixture Range Code:		2 11 11 11		

INSTRUCTIONS

TIER II INVENTORY FORM

Submission of this Tier II form (when requested) is required under section 312 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) which was enacted as Title III of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986, Public Law 99-499, 42 U.S.C. Section 11022.

The purpose of this Tier II form is to provide State and local officials and the public with specific information on hazardous chemicals present at your facility during the past year.

CERTIFICATION

The owner or operator or the officially designated representative of the owner or operator must certify that all information included in the Tier II submission is true, accurate, and complete. On the first page of the Tier II report, enter your full name and official title. Sign your name and enter the current date. Also, enter the total number of pages included in the Confidential and Non-Confidential Information Sheet as well as all attachments. An original signature is required on at least the first page of the submission. Subsequent pages must contain either an original signature, or a signature stamp. *Note: Check with your State for specific requirements for the submission and certification.*

YOUMUST PROVIDE ALL THE INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS FORM TO FULFILL TIER II REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.

This form may also be used as a worksheet for completing the Tier I form or may be submitted in place of the Tier I form. Your State may have specific requirements.

WHO MUST SUBMIT THIS FORM

Section 312 of EPCRA requires that the owner or operator of a facility submit their Tier II form if so requested by a State emergency response commission, a local emergency planning committee, or local fire department with jurisdiction over the facility.

This request may apply to the owner or operator of any facility that is required under regulations implementing the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, to prepare or have available a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for a hazardous chemical present at the facility. MSDS requirements are specified in the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Hazard Communication Standard

(HCS), found in Title 29 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) at Section1910.1200.

This form does not have to be submitted if all of the chemicals located at your facility are excluded under Section 311(e) of EPCRA (discussed below).

WHAT CHEMICALS ARE INCLUDED

If you are submitting the Tier II form in lieu of Tier I, you must report the required information on this Tier II form for each hazardous chemical present at your facility in quantities equal to or greater than established threshold amounts

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

Version 2.0

October, 2016

(discussed below), unless the chemicals are excluded under Section 311(e) of EPCRA.

Hazardous chemical means any hazardous chemical as defined under 29 CFR 1910.1200(c) except that such term does not include substances excluded from section 311(e), as discussed below.

If you elect to submit Tier I rather than Tier II, you may still be required to submit Tier II information upon request.

WHAT CHEMICALS ARE EXCLUDED

Section 311(e) of EPCRA excludes the following substances:

1) Any food, food additive, color additive, drug, or cosmetic regulated by the Food and Drug Administration;

2) Any substance present as a solid in any manufactured item to the extent exposure to the sub-stance does not occur under normal conditions of use;

3) Any substance to the extent it is used for personal, family, or household purposes, or is present in the same form and concentration as a product packaged for distribution and use by the general public;

4) Any substance to the extent it is used in a research laboratory or a hospital or other medical facility under the direct supervision of a technically qualified individual; and

5) Any substance to the extent it is used in routine agricultural operations or is a fertilizer held for sale by a retailer to the ultimate customer.

OSHA regulations, Section 1910.1200(b), stipulate exemptions from the requirement to prepare to have available an MSDS.

REPORTING THRESHOLDS

Minimum thresholds have been established for Tier I/Tier II reporting in 40 CFR part 370). These thresholds are as follows:

For Extremely Hazardous Substances (EHSs) designated under EPCRA Section 302 the reporting threshold is 500 pounds (or 227 kg.) or the threshold planning quantity (TPQ), whichever is lower. (EHSs and their TPQs are listed in 40 CFR part 355, Appendix A and B.

For gasoline (all grades combined) at a retail gas station, the threshold level is 75,000 gallons (or

approximately 283,900 liters), if the tank(s) was stored entirely underground and was in compliance at all times during the preceding calendar year with all applicable Underground Storage Tank (UST) requirements at 40 CFR part 280 or requirements of the State UST program approved by the Agency under 40 CFR part 281.

For diesel fuel (all grades combined) at a retail gas station, the threshold level is 100,000 gallons (or approximately 378,500 liters), if the tank(s) was stored entirely underground and the tank(s) was in compliance at all times during the preceding calendar year with all applicable Underground Storage Tank (UST) requirements at 40 CFR part 280 or requirements of the State UST program approved by the Agency under 40 CFR part 281.

Note: A retail gas station means a retail facility engaged in selling gasoline and/or diesel fuel principally to the public for motor vehicle use on land.

For all other hazardous chemicals for which facilities are required to have or prepare an MSDS, the minimum reporting threshold is 10,000 pounds (or 4.540 kg.).

You need to report hazardous chemicals that were present at your facility at any time during the previous calendar year at levels that equal or exceed these thresholds. For instructions on threshold determinations for components of mixtures, see "What About Mixtures?" in this document.

Note: States may have lower reporting thresholds and additional chemicals covered by the state right-to-know regulations. Contact your state for any specific requirements for that state.

WHEN TO SUBMIT THIS FORM

Owners or operators of facilities that have hazardous chemicals present at the facility in quantities equal to or greater than set threshold levels must submit either Tier I or Tier II form by March 1.

Note: All states currently require facilities to submit federal Tier II inventory form or the state developed form or format including on-line reporting and certification. Contact your state for the specific requirements for that state.

WHERE TO SUBMIT THIS FORM

Send the completed Tier II form(s) to each of the following organizations:

- 1) Your State Emergency Response Commission or Emergency Response Commission of the Tribe.
- 2) Your Local Emergency Planning Committee.
- 3) The fire department with jurisdiction over your facility.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Under EPCRA Section 324, you may elect to withhold location information on a specific chemical from disclosure to the public. If you choose to do so, check the box marked "yes".

- On a separate Tier II Confidential Location Information Sheet, enter the name and CAS number of each chemical for which you are keeping the location confidential.
- Enter the appropriate location and storage information, as described above for non-confidential locations.
- Attach the Tier II Confidential Location Information Sheet to the Tier II form. This separates confidential locations from other information that will be disclosed to the public.

INSTRUCTIONS TO PAGE ONE OF THE TIER II INVENTORY FORM

Please read these instructions carefully. Print or type all responses.

REPORTING PERIOD

Enter the appropriate calendar year, beginning January 1 and ending December 31.

IDENTICAL INFORMATION

Check the box located at the top of page one of the form, if the information reported on page one is identical to that submitted last year.

Note: This data element may be only applicable starting reporting year 2014 since most of the information required on page one of the form is new for reporting year 2013.

Chemical descriptions, hazards, amounts, and locations must be provided in this year's form, even if the information is identical to that submitted last year.

FACILITY IDENTIFICATION

Enter the complete name and address of the location of your facility where the hazardous chemicals are stored. Enter the full street address or state road, county, city, state, and zip code.

Provide a general phone number for your facility. (Note: This is an optional data element.)

Provide the latitude and longitude for the location of your facility.

Indicate if the facility is manned or unmanned. If the facility is manned at least part of the day, check the box "manned". The box "unmanned" should only be checked if the facility is never manned. This information is useful for state and local emergency planners to include people at your facility in the emergency response plan and for planning evacuation during an emergency.

Estimate the maximum number of occupants that may be present at any one time at your facility. If the facility is manned at least part of a day, indicate the number of persons present. This information is useful for state and local emergency planners and responders in the emergency plan and for planning evacuation during an emergency. You should include contractors, vendors and people that may be present for any training or other events as well as employees. If the location is never manned, check the box marked "N/A".

Enter the primary North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code and the Dun & Bradstreet number of your facility. The financial officer of your facility should be able to provide the Dun & Bradstreet number. If your firm does not have this information, contact the State or regional office of Dun & Bradstreet to obtain your facility number or have one assigned.

SUBJECT TO EMERGENCY PLANNING

Indicate if your facility is subject to the emergency planning notification requirement under EPCRA section 302, codified in 40 CFR part 355. Check the box "yes" or "no".

SUBJECT TO CHEMICAL ACCIDENT PREVENTION

Indicate if your facility is subject to chemical accident prevention provisions under section 112(r) of the Clean Air Act, also known as the Risk Management Program (RMP), codified in 40 CFR part 68. Check the box "yes" or "no".

IDENTIFICATION NUMBER UNDER THE TOXIC RELEASE INVENTORY (TRI) PROGRAM

If your facility is subject to the Toxic Release Inventory (TRI) program under section 313 of EPCRA, provide the identification number assigned by EPA. If your facility is not subject to this reporting requirement or if your facility has not been assigned a number under this program, check the box marked "N/A".

IDENTIFICATION NUMBER UNDER THE RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (RMP)

If your facility is subject to the chemical accident prevention provisions codified in 40 CFR part 68, also known as the Risk Management Program, provide the RMP facility identification number assigned by EPA. If your facility is not subject to this provision or if your facility has not been assigned a number, check the box marked "N/A".

OWNER/OPERATOR

Enter the owner or operator's full name, mailing address, and phone number. Provide the email address of the owner or operator of the facility.

PARENT COMPANY

Enter the name, mailing address, phone number, email address and Dun & Bradstreet number of the parent company. *Note: These are optional data elements*.

FACILITY EMERGENCY COORDINATOR

Enter the name, title, email address, phone number and 24-hour phone number of the facility emergency coordinator.

Note: This data element is only applicable to facilities subject to EPCRA section 302(c) emergency planning notification. Section 303(d)(1) of EPCRA requires facilities subject to the emergency planning notification requirement under Section 302(c) to designate a facility representative who will participate in the local emergency planning process as a facility emergency coordinator. This data element is also applicable to additional facilities designated by the Governor or the SERC under EPCRA section 302(b)(2)). EPA encourages facilities not subject to the emergency planning notification requirement also to provide this information, for effective emergency planning in your community.

TIER II INFORMATION CONTACT

Enter the name, title, email address and phone number of the person knowledgeable of the information contained in the Tier II inventory form.

EMERGENCY CONTACT

Enter the name, title, phone number and email address of at least one local person or office that can act as a referral if emergency responders need assistance in responding to a chemical accident at the facility. If there is more than one person assigned to this duty, provide the same information for that person.

Also, provide an emergency phone number where such emergency information will be available 24 hours a day, every day. This is mandatory. The facility must make some arrangement to ensure that a 24-hour contact is available.

INSTRUCTIONS TO PAGE TWO OF THE FORM

CHEMICAL INFORMATION SECTION

Description, Hazards, Amounts, and Locations

This section of the Tier II form requires facilities to report specific information on amounts and locations of hazardous chemicals. Separate fields are provided for reporting both pure chemicals and mixtures. For each entry, check the box indicating if the information is identical to the information submitted last year.

Chemical descriptions, hazards, amounts, and locations must be provided even if the information is identical to that submitted last year.

• What units should I use?

Calculate all amounts as *weight in pounds*. To convert gas or liquid volume to weight in pounds, multiply by an appropriate density factor.

• What about mixtures?

If a hazardous chemical is part of a mixture, you have the option of reporting the entire mixture or only the portion of the mixture that is a particular hazardous chemical (e.g., If a hazardous solution weighs 100 lbs. but is composed of only 5% of a particular hazardous chemical, you can indicate either 100 lbs. of the mixture or 5 lbs. of the chemical).

The option used for each mixture at your facility must be consistent with the option used in your Section 311 reporting.

Because EHSs are important to local emergency planning requirement under EPCRA section 303, EHSs have lower reporting thresholds under EPCRA section 312. The amount of an EHS at a facility (both pure EHSs and EHSs in mixtures) must be aggregated for purposes of threshold determination. It is suggested that the aggregation calculation be done as a first step in determining whether reporting threshold has been met or exceeded. Once you determine whether a threshold for an EHS has been reached, you may report the mixture or product name as it appears on the MSDS. You must also report any EHSs present in the mixture. You do not need to report any non-EHSs in the mixture, but may if you wish to do so. Although you have an option to report either the mixture or the EHS, as provided in 40 CFR 370.14, you must be consistent with your EPCRA section 311 reporting.

For any mixture containing an EHS that the facility is reporting as a mixture, the facility must check the box "yes" to indicate that the mixture contains an above-threshold EHS. You must also write the name of the EHS(s) contained in the mixture on the line provided.

You are not required to list any non-EHSs in the mixture. This is optional.

CHEMICAL DESCRIPTION

Separate fields are provided for reporting pure chemicals and mixtures. For each entry, <u>check the box</u> <u>indicating if the information is identical to the information submitted last year.</u>

To report mixtures, facilities have the option to report by the component or the mixture itself. However, as stated in the regulations at 40 CFR 370.14(b), the reporting option used must be consistent for both MSDS and inventory reporting, unless it is not possible to do so. This means that, if the facility report on a specific mixture as a whole for MSDS reporting, then the facility must report on that mixture as a whole for inventory reporting too. Pure Chemical:

- Provide the chemical name (or common name of the chemical) as provided on the Safety Data Sheet (SDS). Enter the Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) registry number.
- Indicate if the chemical is an EHS. Check the box "yes" or "no".
- Check box for the appropriate descriptor for the chemical: solid, liquid, or gas.

Mixture:

- Provide the name of the mixture, product name or trade name as provided on the safety data sheet (SDS).
- Enter the Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) number of the mixture or product, if available.
- Check box for the appropriate descriptor: solid, liquid, or gas.
- If the mixture contains any EHS, check the box "yes", and then enter the name and CAS number of each EHS in the mixture.
- You are not required to list non-EHSs in the mixture, but may report if you wish to do so.

If you are withholding the name of a chemical or mixture as trade secret in accordance with criteria specified in EPCRA section 322, enter the generic class or category that is structurally descriptive of the chemical (e.g., list toluene diisocyanate as organic isocyanate) and check the box marked Trade Secret. Trade secret information should be submitted to EPA and must include a substantiation.

Trade secret regulations can be found in 40 CFR part 350.

Trade secret substantiation form and instructions can be accessed from EPA website at http://www2.epa.gov/epcra-tier-i-and-tier-ii-reporting/epcra-trade-secret-forms-and-instructions.

PHYSICAL AND HEALTH HAZARDS

For each chemical you have listed, check all the physical and health hazard boxes that apply. These hazard categories are defined in 40 CFR 370.66. The two health hazard categories and three physical hazard categories are a consolidation of the 23 hazard categories defined in the OSHA Hazard Communication Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1200.

Hazard Category Comparison for Reporting Under Sections 311 and 312

<u>EPAs Hazard Categories</u> Fire Hazard	OSHA's Hazard Categories Flammable Combustion Liquid Pyrophoric Oxidizer
Sudden Release of Pressure	Explosive Compressed Gas
Reactive	Unstable Reactive Organic Peroxide Water Reactive
Immediate (Acute) Health Hazards	Highly Toxic Toxic Irritant Sensitizer Corrosive Other hazardous chemicals with an adverse effect with short term exposure
Delayed (Chronic) Health Hazard	Carcinogens Other hazardous chemicals with an adverse effect with long term exposure

MAXIMUM AMOUNT

- 1) For each pure chemical or mixture that you are reporting, estimate the maximum amount present at your facility on any single day during the reporting period.
- 2) If you are reporting a mixture, you must list any EHS(s) present in the mixture and report the maximum amount and the CAS number(s) of each EHS present in the mixture. Find the appropriate range value code in Table I.
- 3) Enter this range value as the maximum daily amount.

Range Value	Weight R	ange in Pounds
	From	То
01	0	99
02	100	499
03	500	999
04	1,000	4,999
05	5,000	9,999
06	10,000	24,999
07	25,000	49,999
08	50,000	74,999
09	75,000	99,999
10	100,000	499,999
11	500,000	999,999
12	1,000,000	9,999,999
13	10,000,000	Greater than 10 million

TABLE I - REPORTING RANGES

EXAMPLE:

You received one large shipment of a solvent mixture last year. The shipment filled five 5,000-gallon storage tanks. You know that the solvent contains 10% benzene, which is a hazardous chemical.

You figure that 10% of 25,000 gallons is 2,500 gallons. You also know that the density of benzene is 7.29 pounds per gallon, so you multiply 2,500 gallons by 7.29 pounds per gallon to get a weight of 18,225 pounds.

Then you look at Table I and find that the range value 06 corresponds to 18,225. You enter 06 as the Maximum Amount.

AVERAGE DAILY AMOUNT

- 1) For each pure chemical or mixture that you are reporting, estimate the average weight in pounds that was present at your facility during the year.
- 2) To do this, total all daily weights and divide by the number of days the chemical was present on the site.
- 3) Find the appropriate range value in Table I.
- 4) Enter this range value as the Average Daily Amount.

EXAMPLE:

The 25,000-gallon shipment of solvent you received last year was gradually used up and completely gone in 315 days. The sum of the daily volume levels in the tank is 4,536,000 gallons. By dividing 4,536,000 gallons by 315 days on-site, you calculate an average daily amount of 14,400 gallons.

You already know that the solvent contains 10% benzene, which is a hazardous chemical. Since 10% of 14,400 is 1,440, you figure that you had an average of 1,440 gallons of benzene. You also know that the density of benzene is 7.29 pounds per gallon, so you multiply 1,440 by 7.29 to get a weight of 10,500 pounds.

Then you look at Table I and find that the range value 06 corresponds to 10,500. You enter 06 as the Average Daily Amount.

NUMBER OF DAYS ON-SITE

Enter the number of days that the hazardous chemical was present on-site.

EXAMPLE:

The solvent composed of 10% benzene was present for 315 days at your facility. Enter 315 in the space provided.

STORAGE TYPES, CONDITIONS AND LOCATIONS

List all non-confidential locations of hazardous chemicals along with storage types and conditions associated with each location. Please note that a particular chemical or mixture may be located in several places around the facility.

1. STORAGE TYPES AND CONDITIONS

Enter the types and conditions of storage for each chemical that you are reporting.

Version 2.0

- a. *Table II.* This table lists examples of some of the common storage types that facilities use at their site. You may provide a detailed description for the storage type at your facility.
- b. *Table III*. For each location, find the appropriate storage types for pressure and temperature conditions. You may provide a description for the various conditions at your facility.

<u>Table II – STORAGE TYPES</u> Above ground tank	Table III – PRESSURE & TEMPERATURE CONDITIONS (PRESSURE)
Below ground tank	Ambient pressure
Tank inside building	Greater than ambient pressure
Steel drum	Less than ambient pressure
Plastic or non-metallic drum	(TEMPERATURE)
Can	Ambient temperature
Carboy	Greater than ambient temperature
Silo	Less than ambient temperature but not cryogenic
Fiber drum	Cryogenic conditions
Bag	
Box	
Cylinder	
Glass bottles or jugs	
Plastic bottles or jugs	
Tote bin	
Tank Wagon	
Rail Car	
Battery	

2. STORAGE LOCATIONS:

Indicate if your facility wishes to claim the location information for any of the pure chemical or mixture that you are reporting. Check the box "yes" or "no".

If you wish to claim the location information confidential for any of the chemical or mixture that you are reporting, you must fill out the Confidential Location Information Sheet and you must submit it along with your Tier II inventory form. The Confidential Location Information Sheet can be found at EPA's website at: http://www2.epa.gov/epcra-tier-ii-and-tier-ii-reporting/epcra-tier-ii-confidential-location-information-form.

If the location is non-confidential, provide a brief description of the precise location of the chemical, so that emergency responders can locate the area easily. You may find it advantageous to provide the optional site plan or site coordinates as explained below.

For each chemical, indicate at a minimum the building or lot. Additionally, where practical, the room or area may be indicated. You may respond in narrative form with appropriate site coordinates or abbreviations.

If the chemical is present in more than one building, lot, or area location, list each location as appropriate.

OPTIONAL ATTACHMENTS

If you choose to attach one of the following, check the appropriate optional attachments box at the bottom of the chemical reporting section of the Tier II form.

- a. A site plan with site coordinates indicated for buildings, lots, areas, etc. throughout your facility.
- b. *A list of site coordinate abbreviations* that correspond to buildings, lots, areas, etc. throughout your facility.
- c. *A description of dikes and other safeguard measures* for storage locations throughout your facility.

EXAMPLE:

You may have benzene in the main room of the main building, and in tank 2 in tank field 10. You may attach a site plan with coordinates as follows: main building = G-2, tank field 10 = B-6. Fill in the Storage Location as follows:

B-6 [Tank 2] G-2 [Main Room]

ADDITIONAL REPORTING INFORMATION (OPTIONAL)

This column is for facilities that may wish to report hazardous chemicals below the reporting thresholds and/or to report any additional state or local requirements. Check the appropriate box and follow the same procedures as described above for reporting each hazardous chemical or for any mixture that contains a hazardous chemical.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

APPENDIX L

Cost Recovery Packet

STATE EMERGENCY RESPONSE COMMISSION (SERC)

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

STANDARD COST RECOVERY PACKET

INCIDENT #:

LOCATION:

DATE:

AGENCY NAME:

TELEPHONE:

COMPLETED BY:

Send to: SERC c/o MT Disaster & Emergency Services, 1956 Mt Majo Street, PO Box 4789, Fort Harrison MT 59636-4789.

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

Version 2.0

83 | Page

BILLING INFORMATION WORKSHEET

Billing Information - Spiller Information Incident

A)	Spiller Name:	B)	Response Entity Name:
	Address:		Address:
	City:		City:
	State: Zip:		State: Zip:
	Telephone No:		Telephone No:
(\mathbf{C})			
	Location of Incident:	D)	Date/Time of Incident:
E)	Chemical(s):	F)	Include the following with this submittal:
			Resource Order Number(s):
			Invoice(s):
			Any other documents that may apply:
G)	Actions Taken:		

APPARATUS/VEHICLE COST WORKSHEET

INCIDENT NO.

APPARATUS/VEHICLE DESCRIPTION	TIME REQUESTED	TIME ON SCENE	TIME RELEASED	RATE PER MILE	RATE PER DAY	# Miles	TOTAL COST

SUBTOTAL _____

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

Version 2.0

October, 2016

85 | Page

PERSONNEL COST WORKSHEET INCIDENT NO.

DATE	AGENCY	RESPONDER	POSITION	TOTAL HOURS	HOURLY RATE	TOTAL COST

SUBTOTAL_____

EQUIPMENT COST WORKSHEET

INCIDENT NO.

ITEM DESCRIPTION	USED BY	# USED	HOURS USED	RATE	TOTAL COST

SUB TOTAL _____

Local Emergency Planning Committee Handbook

Version 2.0

October, 2016

87 | Page

MISCELLANEOUS/MATERIALS COST WORKSHEET INCIDENT NO.

DESCRIPTION	USED BY	# USED	COST EACH	TOTAL COST

SUB TOTAL _____

COST SUMMARY SHEET

APPARATUS/VEHICLE COST	
PERSONNEL COST	
EQUIPMENT COST	
MISC./MATERIALS COST	

TOTAL INCIDENT COST

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

APPENDIX M Sample Letter to Appoint LEPC Chairperson

[County Letterhead]

[Date]

[Name] [Address]

Re: Local Emergency Planning Committee Chairperson Appointment

SERC Chairperson:

In compliance with the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act (EPCRA) [Enter Name] has been appointed as the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) Chairperson for [Enter County]. This appointment will be for a [Enter Number]-year term.

Sincerely,

CHAIRPERSON, COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (PRINTED)

CHAIRPERSON, COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (SIGNATURE/DATE)

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

APPENDIX N List of Acronyms

CERCLA	Comprehensive Emergency Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (Superfund)
CFATS	Chemical Facility Anti-Terrorism Standard
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
CRTK	Community Right-to-Know
DEQ	Montana Department of Environmental Quality
DES	Disaster & Emergency Services
DHS	Department of Homeland Security
DOT	Department of Transportation
EHS	Extremely Hazardous Substance
EMPG	Emergency Management Performance Grant
EMS	Emergency Medical Services
EOP	Emergency Operations Plan
EPA	Environmental Protection Agency
EPCRA	Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act
EPD	Emergency Planning District

FEMA	Federal Emergency Management Agency
HazMat	Hazardous Materials
HMEP	Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning
HMTUSA	Hazardous Materials Transportation Uniform Safety Act
ICS	Incident Command System
LEPC	Local Emergency Planning Committee
LERA	Local Emergency Response Authority
SDS	Safety Data Sheet
MCA	Montana Code Annotated
MTDES	Montana Disaster & Emergency Services
NRC	National Response Center
NRT	National Response Team
OEM	Office of Emergency Management
OSC	On-Scene Coordinators
OSHA	Occupational Safety and Health Administration
RCRA	Resource Conservation & Recovery Act
RMP	Risk Management Plan
RQ	Reportable Quantity
SARA	Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act

SDS	Safety Data Sheet
SEP	Supplemental Environmental Projects
SERC	State Emergency Response Commission
TERC	Tribal Emergency Response Commission
TPQ	Threshold Planning Quantity
TRI	Toxic Release Inventory